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... Best for its Guests

Isle of Capri Casinos®, Inc.s mission is to be
the best Zaming entertainment company. ..

... Best for its Employees

... Best for its Communities

... Best for its Investors

Not the biggest— but the Best!

OUR COMPANY

sle of Capri Casinos, Inc.
opened its doors on August 1,
' 1992 with a single casino

property in Biloxi, Mississippi.
£ The company, led by
Bernard Goldstein, often referred to
as the Father of Riverboat Gaming,
opened the first gaming operation
in the South. Since that day nine years
ago, Isle of Capri Casinos has grown
into a billion-dollar company and
currently operates 14 casino and

Iesort properties.

Through the strategy of Islestylezation,
Isle of Capri has grown to represent a
strong presence in the gaming industry.
Each Isle-owned property operates
under uniform guidelines allowing for

reduced costs as well as consistency.

Isle of Capri Casinos operates
riverboat, dockside and land-based
casinos in Biloxi, Vicksburg, Tunica,
Lula, and Natchez, Mississippi;
Bossier City and Lake Charles (rtwo
riverboats), Louisiana; Black Hawk,
Colorado; Bettendorf, Davenport
and Marquette, lowa; Kansas City and
Boonville, Missouri; and Las Vegas,
Nevada. The company also operates
Pompano Park Harness Racing Track

in Pompano Beach, Florida.

A progressive company with proven
stability, Isle of Capri Casinos continues
to successfully make its mark as a
publicly traded company. The Isle of
Capri Casinos common stock is traded
on the NASDAQ Stock Market under
the symbol ISLE.
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CONSOLIDATED ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.

(In thousands, except per share data)

Aprit 30,
2000'

Fiscal Year Ended April 28,

2002

April 29,
2001

Income Statement Data

$646,704
533,208
113,496
159,262

$1,085,311
981,328
103,983’
241,280

$982,801
837,069
145,732
224217

Revenues®..............
Operating expenses. . . . ..
Operating income’. ... ...
EBITDA*............ ...
Income before taxes and

8,067°

45,648 57,528

extraordinary item® ... ..
Income before extraordinary
item per common

share—diluted® ...... .. 0.15° 0.80 [.15

Balan¢e Sheet Data

Totalassets............. $1,340,223 $1,382,907 $1,305514
Long-term debt including
1,009,299

159,198

1,039,121
166,041

962,901
155,520

current portion. ... .. ..

Stockholders' equity . . . . .

1 Refe to management’s discussion and analysis of financiat conditions and resuls of operation for comments regacding the comparability of the information presented.

2 Revenues are presented net of complimentaries, slot points expense and cash coupon redemprions. Slot points expense and cash coupon redemptions were previously
charged to marketing expense. Prior year information has been adjusted for comparison purposes.

3 Fiscal 2002 amount has been reduced by pre-tax valuation charges totaling $61,362, primarily to write down Isle—Tunica and Lady Luck—Las Vegas to estimated fair
vatue. Had these non-cash, non-tecurting charges not been made, operating income, income before taxes and excraordinary item and income before extraordinaty item
per common share-diluted would have been $165,345, $69,429 and $1.48 respectively.

4 EBITDA, or “earnings before incerest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization,” is a supplemental financial measurement used by Isle of Capri in the evaluation
of its business. EBITDA is defined as net income {loss) plus {a) income taxes, (b) interest expense (net of interest income), (c) depreciation and amortization and
(d) inter-company managemen fees. Additionally, EBITDA has been adjusted for the following non-recurring items: (a) accrued litigation sectlement reversal, (b) valvarion
charge, (c) restructuring charge and (d) pre-opening expenses as reflected in our consolidated financial statements and notes to those statements. EBFTDA also excludes
equity in income (loss) of unconsolidated joine ventures and minority interest. These adjustments to EBITDA are allocared to Isle of Capri and its subsidiaries based on
the entity giving rise to the adjustment. However, EBITDA should only be read in conjunction with 2l of our financial data summarized above and our consolidared
financial statements and notes to those scatements prepared in accordance with GAAP appearing elsewhere in this annual report. EBITDA is presented not as an alternative
measure of operating results or cash flow from operations (as determined in accordance with GAAP), but because it is 2 widely accepted financial indicator of a company's
ability to incur and service debe.
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We are in the business of creating
WINNING eXPEVIENCES. . .

EVERVYBODY VYINSI

‘::F hese two words sum

J | up how we view our

“ ‘ business and certainly what
j, ‘ our brand has represented

i

|

- since we opened our ﬁl‘St

Isle of Capri Casino in 1992.

And this past fiscal year was no
exception. We achieved year-over-year
EBITDA growth (earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization) with almost all of
our properties. For the fiscal year
ended April 28, 2002, we reported
$241.3 million in EBITDA as
compared to $224.2 million in
EBITDA for the prior year, which

results in 7.6 percent growth.

Also in this year, we made the decision
to dispose of the Isle of Capri—Tunica
and Lady Luck—Las Vegas. Selling these

properties will allow us to return our

focus to what we know best: operating

'To Our Stockholders

regional casinos that fit our business
model. This decision caused us to

write down these assets, and other

non-productive assets, by $61.4 million

ANNUAL_REPORT 2002

to their fair value. Had these non-cash,

5

IsLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
non-recurring charges not been made,

N

operating income, income before

taxes and extraordinary items and
income before extraordinary items

per common share-diluted would have
been $165.3 million, $69.4 million
and $1.48, respectively.

We are in the business of creating fun
experiences for our guests, employees,
communities and of course, our investors.
It has been our primary business goal to
be the best in the industry in exceeding
the expectations of these four core
constituent groups, each of which is

critical to our ongoing achievement.

Since 1992, accomplishing this goal
year after year has led Isle of Capri
Casinos to evolve into a billion-dollar
company with 14 casinos located in
Colorado, lowa, Louisiana, Mississippi,
Missouri and Nevada, in addition to
Pompano Park Racing in Florida. We're
in the business of fun. And it’s our
commitment to provide our guests with
a consistent, fun-filled gaming and
entertainment experience that clearly
defines our brand and separates us from

the competition.

Our unique approach to standardized
procedures in marketing and opera-
tions—we call it Islestylezation— has
played a key role in enabling us to serve
our constituents and has contributed
to the remarkable advances and sound
financial performance of our company,
even in an environment of mounting

competition in the marketplace.

This smart working philosophy has
truly been the foundation upon which
we have grown and strengthened our
company. By constantly refining our
business model, we've been able to
dedicate our resources more effectively

to take care of our customers. Qur

company mission statement epitomizes




the service-oriented culture we've created
and that clearly contributes to our
bottom line. Be the “best for our
guests, our communities, our
employees, and our investors. ..

not the biggest, but the best.”

It’s our belief in, and commitment
to, this mission statement that has
made Isle of Capri Casinos the seventh
largest public gaming company in
the U.S. casino industry. And a

strong, profitable company means

that everybody wins. ..
e ey e A s T T (e
CUR CUESTS ARENTINNZRS,

/ﬁ ur customers win

(] . because they enjoy great
customer service, great
L /. rewards and a great

N gaming experience.

Great customer service, coupled
with the innovative deployment of
technological solutions that enhance
our customers fun, are the key points
that differentiate the experience we

offer in our markets.

Over the past fiscal year, each of
our 12,000 employees has received
a minimum of twenty-four hours
of guest service training, called
One Customer at a Time, which
emphasizes personalized service

and customer recognition.

In addition, we have introduced
the first two phases of our IsleOne®
Marketing System during the past
fiscal year. This system, which is a
culmination of an effort that began
eight years ago, is designed to heighten
the level of fun that customers
experience by enabling our more than
4.5 million Island Gold® players to

use one card to earn and redeem

Omne Customer ar a [ ime
emphasizes pevsonaiized service
ARG, CUSLOMEr TCOgNILION.

rewards at any Isle of Capri location,

as well as Rhythm City.

Our second phase of deployment
includes a very powerful e-marketing
module called iGOLD®, which allows
customers convenient access to their
account information, as well as to special
offers they can redeem and reservations

they can make online in real time.

Also included in this second phase
has been the full integration of our
centralized customer contact center,
which makes it possible for customers
to talk with a representative at any time
about any of our properties and programs

by dialing one toll-free number.

AMNUAL REPCRT 2002
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This past year we launched a multi- SRS
million dollar slot improvement plan, SR
LONT N AT which upgrades the slot product at the L

/7 0\ ur incredibly dedicated

B majority of our casinos. Because of our '
e e e e . staff wins every day on the
SN TANT AVINT I W substantial growth over the last two _ ,
o e e . : : job because we've created
CFFER. 18 THE INDUSTRY years, we recognized that it was time to O
e G g o . . a positive, fun atmosphere
IVOIVIS ST ZCIS T turn our energies toward strengthening - Iy )
e ot o A p e g Syt ; . “>- < for them to work in where
SSLETC VEETANT HEED what we've worked so hard to build.

TEEEXUATTEICNS CF

We invested $32.7 million in this
project during the fiscal year ending
April 28, 2002, and expect to purchase
state-of-the-art technology in the

coming years to spur internal growth.

We recognized that it was time to
surn our energies 1o strengihening
whar weve worked so hard to build,

;
{
.
:
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The slot industry has evolved into
producing a much more interactive
product and, with this plan, we’ll

be able to offer our guests the most

cutting-edge games available.
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their voices are always heard and
respected. They are the ones who truly
bring life to our mission statement
and make excellent customer service
possible. Therefore, we do our

very best to take care of our family

of employees.



Our retention programs have
contributed to a significant reduction
in employee turnover. In fact, according
to industry reports, we have one of
the lowest turnover rates in the industry
which tells us that our employees like
working at the Isle and, as a result,
we have the best staff possible taking

care of our guests.

We have the best
staff possible taking

care of our guesis.

We encourage our employees to
voice their job-related concerns by
using Speak-Up computers located in
the back of the house. They can e-mail
their suggestions anonymously, if they
choose, to top management, with a
guaranteed response in 48 hours. This
program is so innovative that it was
lauded in the April 22, 2002 issue of
TIME Magazine.

Eye on the Isle, another employee-
focused program, allows our staff to
nominate fellow Isle employees for
special recognition. This exchange
fosters a spirit of teamwork throughout
the company and builds our brand

from within.

In her book Fun Works: Creating
Places Where People Love To Work,

Leslie Yerkes outlines 11 principles for
establishing employee relations that will
retain a satisfied workforce. The author
cites our Isle Style® training approach
for creating superior customer service:
“Isle Style is so branded that every
employee knows about it, talks about

it, believes it and behaves it.”

It has taken a true dedication to
our staff to build a corporate culture
that is different. In the long run,
employees, customers and the company

reap the rewards.

1

TsLE o Canrl CASINOS, INC.
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" he communities in which
we operate win because
we are commirtted to
partnering with them on

every level. We currently

We Bnow thar reinvestment in our
COMITIUIIELLES 1S imzegm/ 10 OUr SUCCESS.

support local chapters of charitable
organizations, including the American
Cancer Society, the Muscular Dystrophy
Association, the March of Dimes and

the Special Olympics.

REPQRT 2007
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We also provide a strong economic
stimulus to our regional economies
by hiring approximately 90 percent
of our
employees
locally
and by
contracting

with local

vendors,
contractors and suppliers. We know that
this reinvestment in our communities is

integral to our long-term success.



ur shareholders win
because we are committed
‘ to the financial success of
A /f‘ | our brand. As we actively
\\ -/ plan our company’s growth,
we are commiitted to innovations
designed
to increase
operational
efficiencies

while

continually

diversifying
our assets. We believe that this effort
enables us to maintain a steady,
measured growth strategy that is

arypical of our industry.

One of our major focuses for this
year was to utilize the major portion of
our free cash to pay down debrt and
produce ratios more than acceptable

to 1nvestors.

We increased financial flexibility by
entering into an amended and restated
senior secured credit facility totaling

$500 million, replacing our existing

$650 million facility. This refinancing

also included the issuance in March

We are committed to the financial
success of our brand.

2002 of $200 million of nine percent

senior subordinated notes due 2012.

Isle of Capri Black Hawk L.L.C.
redeemed its outstanding 13 percent
mortgage notes in the amount of
$75 million due 2004, on December 18,
2001. The redemption was funded
with proceeds from a new $90 million
secured credit facility at a substantially

reduced interest rate from a group of

lenders, lead by CIBC World Markets.

Tste OF CAPRI CASINGS, INC.
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This new debt structure gives us

more flexibility, extends maturities and

Isle of Capri Casinos,

60 percent this year.

reduces our interest expense and senior
debt level. It also puts us in a position
to take advantage of opportunities

for further internal expansion and

new acquisitions.

In a year where a sluggish economy
and concerns about air travel hurt the
tourism and entertainment industries,
we beat the odds and opened a
new approximately $71 million,
72,000 square-foot casino in Boonville,
Missouri— and created more than
800 local jobs.

Despite a slowdown in the industry

overall, Isle of Capri Casinos stock

increased 60 percent this year, outpacing
most stocks by a wide margin. During
the past year, several analysts upgraded

our stock from a buy to a strong buy.

Isle of Capri Casinos has performed
so well in fact, that we have recently
been spotlighted by the likes of CNBC,
CBS Newswatch, Bloomberg TV, the
Wall Street Journal and the New York

Times as a casino stock to watch.

Inc. stock increased

All of our growth and achievement
stem from building on our core values:
to be the best
in the category.
We are in

the business

of creating

winners and
fun for our customers every time they
visit. And our investors have rewarded
us for adhering to these principles,

which fuel our success.

We're all winners at Isle of Capri
Casinos, Inc. because of winners

like you.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations

You should read the following discussion together with the financial
starements, including the related notes and the other financial
tnformation in this Form 10-K,

Critical Accounting Policies
Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States that
require our management to make estimates and assumptions about the
effects of matters that are inherently uncertain. We have summarized
our significant accounting policies in Note 1 to our consolidated
financial statements. Of our accoundng policies, we believe the following

may involve a higher degree of judgment and complexity:

Goodwil]

At April 28, 2002, we had a net goodwilf and other intangible
asset balances of $364.6 million, representing 27% of total assets.
Effective April 30, 2002, we elected to adopt Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No.142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets” (“SFAS 1427), which established a new method of testing
goodwill and other intangible assets using a fair-value based approach
and does not permit amortization of goodwill as was previously
required. Upon adoption, amortization of goodwill and other intangible
assets ceased. Amortization would have been $15.6 million for the fiscal
year ended April 28, 2002.

SFAS 142 requires that goodwill and other intangible assets be
tested for impairment annually or if an event occurs or circumstances
change that may reduce the fair value of the Company below its book
value. Should circumstances change or events occur to indicate that
the fair marker value of the Company has fallen below its book value,
management must then compate the estimated fair value of goodwill
and other intangible assets to book value. If the book value exceeds the
estimated fair value, an impairment loss would be recognized in an
amount equal to that excess. Such an impairment loss would be recognized
as a non-cash component of operating income. We completed our
impairment test as required under SFAS 142 and determined that
goodwill and other intangible assets are not impaired. This test
required comparison of our estimated fair value at April 28, 2002 to
our book value, including goodwill and other intangible assets. The
estimated fair value includes estimates of future cash flows, which are
based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and represent our
best estimates of the cash flows expected to result from the use of the

assets and their eventual disposition.

MANAGEMENT"S DISCUSSION «Z3
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Property and Equipment

At April 28, 2002, we had a net property and equipment balance
of $803.5 million, representing 60% of total assets. We depreciate the
property and equipment on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimaced useful lives are based on the nature of the
assets as well as our current operating strategy. Future events such as
property expansions, new competition and new regulations could
result in a change in the manner in which we are using certain assecs
requiring a change in the estimated useful lives of such assets. In
assessing the recoverability of the carrying value of property and
equipment, we must make assumptions regarding future cash flows
and other factors. If these estimates or the related assumptions change
in the future, we may be required to record impairment loss for these
assets. Such an impairment loss would be recognized as a non-cash

component of operating income.

For the fourth quarter 2002, we determined that we would not be
able to recover the net book value of the Iste-Tunica or the Lady Luck-
Las Vegas based on current real estate and market conditions and
recent offers to purchase the properties. As a result, we recognized an
impairment charge of $59.2 million in the fourth quarter of fiscal
2002. The post-impairment carrying value less estimated costs to sell
of approximately $21.5 million, and we anticipate that we will continue

to use these assets until sold or otherwise disposed of.

Self-Insurance Liabilities

We are self-funded up to a maximum amount per claim for our
employee-related health care benefits program, workers' compensation
insurance and general liability insurance. Claims in excess of this
maximum are fully insured through a stop-loss insurance policy.
We accrue for these liabilities based on claims filed and estimates of
claims incurred but not reported. While the toral cost of claims
incurred depends on future developments, such as increases in health
care costs, in our opinion, recorded reserves are adequate to cover

future claims payments.

Slot Club Awards

We reward our slot customers for their loyalty based on the dollar
amount of play on slot machines. We accrue for these slot club awards
based on an estimate of the outstanding value of the awards utilizing
the age and prior history of redemptions. Future events such as a
change in our marketing strategy or new competition could result in a
change in the value of the awards. Such a change would be recognized

as a non-cash component of net revenues.
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General
Significant Events

Fiscal Year 2002
¢ The Isle-Boonville opened December 6, 2001,
* On November 16, 2001, the Isle-Black Hawk entered into a
$90.0 million secured credit facility, that is non-recourse debt
to the Isle of Capri, primarily for the purpose of funding the
redemption of the 13% First Mortgage Notes.
* On March 27, 2002, the Company issued $200.0 million of 9%
Senior Subordinated Notes due 2012.
< On April 26, 2002, the Company amended the existing $630.0 million
Amended and Restated Senior Credit Facility with a $500.0 million
Senior Secured Credit Facility. The Senior Credit Facility provides for
2 $250.0 million revolving credit facility maturing on April 25, 2007
and a $250.0 million term loan facility maturing on April 25, 2008.
* A valuation charge totaling $61.4 million was recorded in the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2002 reflecting the impairment charge of $59.2 million
relating to the Isle-Tunica and the Lady Luck-Las Vegas. Also included
was an impairment charge of $2.2 million relating to marine assets.
Fiscal Year 2001
* The Isle-Black Hawk opened its 237-room hotel in August 2000.
¢ The Isle-Tunica opened its 227-room hotel in November 2000.
* The Isle-Lake Charles opened its 252-room hotel in November 2000.
* Renovations
The Isle-Kansas City was renovated in the third and fourth quarters
of fiscal 2001.
The Rhythm City-Davenport was renovated in the third and
fourth quarters of fiscal 2001.
The Isle-Lula was renovated in the third and fourth quarters of
fiscal 2001.
* The Rhythm City-Davenport closed due to flooding from Aprif 18 -
May 20, 2002.
* The Isle-Marquette closed due to flooding from April 18 - May 2, 2002.

Our results of operations for the fiscal year ended April 28, 2002
reflect the consolidated operations of all of our subsidiaries and
include the following properties: the Isle-Bossier City, the Isle-Lake
Charles, the Isle-Biloxi, the Isle-Lula, the Isle-Natchez, the Isle-Tunica,
the Isle-Vicksburg, the Iste-Kansas City, the Isle-Bettendorf; the Isle-
Marquette, the Rhythm City-Davenport, the Isle-Black Hawk, the
Lady Luck-Las Vegas and Pompano Park. Results also include the Isle-
Boonville subsequent to its opening in December 2001.

Our results of operations for the fiscal year ended April 29, 2001

reflect the consolidated operations of all of our subsidiaries and

s WA St At i
o e s L L e i

includes the following properties: the Isle-Bossier City, the Isle-Lake
Charles, the Isle-Biloxi, the Isle-Lula, the Isle-Natchez, the Isle-Tunica,
the Isle-Vicksburg, the Isle-Bettendorf, the Isle-Marquette, the Isle-
Black Hawk and Pompano Park. Results also include the Isle-Kansas
City subsequent to its purchase in June 2000, the Lady Luck-Las Vegas
subsequent to its purchase in September 2000 and the Rhythm City-

Davenport subsequent to its purchase in October 2000.

We believe that our historical results of operations may not be
indicative of our future results of operations because of the substantia!
present and expected future increase in competition for gaming customers
in each of our markets as new gaming facilities open and existing

gaming facilities add to or enhance their facilities.

On March 14, 2002, we announced that our Board of Directors
authorized us to embark on plans to sell or otherwise dispose of the Isle-
Tunica and the Lady Luck-Las Vegas properties. We recorded a pre-tax
asset impairment charge of approximately $61.4 million in our fiscal
fourth quarter ended April 28, 2002. This charge consists of $59.2 million
related to the write-down of the Isle-Tunica and the Lady Luck-Las Vegas
properties and $2.2 million related to the write-down of barges and hulls
held by us for sale. The impairment loss on the write-down of assets, net
of tax, was approximately $39.9 million, or $1.41 per diluted share.

Results of Operations
Fiscal Year Ended April 28, 2002 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended
April 29, 2001

Gross revenue for the fiscal year ended Aprit 28, 2002, was
$1.3 billion, which included $1.1 billion of casino revenue,
$56.0 million of rooms revenue, $23.5 million of pari-mutuel
commissions and $152.2 million of food, beverage and other revenue.
This compares to gross revenue for the fiscal year ended April 29, 2001
of $1.2 billion, which included $957.1 million of casino revenue,
$50.7 million of rooms revenue, $22.2 million of pari-mutuel

commissions and $148.3 million of food, beverage and other revenue.

Casino revenue increased $99.8 million or 10.4% when compared
to the prior year. This is the result of the $31.2 million increase in
casino revenue at the Isle-Kansas City due to the renovations that
improved the property in the prior year and a full year of operations
(the Isle-Kansas City was acquired in June 2000), $28.7 million
increase in casino revenue at the Rhythm City-Davenport, which was
acquired in October 2000, and the addition of $25.0 million in casino
revenue from the Isle-Boonville which opened in December 2001.
These positive variances from the prior year were partially offset by the

$16.2 million decline in casino revenue at the Isle-Bossier City, primarily




attributable to the heightened competidion in that market resulting from
the opening of Hollywood Casino’s gaming facility and additional hotel
rooms at Harrahs gaming facility during our 2001 fiscal third quarter.

The room revenue increase of $5.2 million or 10.3% over the
prior year was the result of new hotels being completed in the prior
year at the Isle-Black Hawk in August 2000 and the Isle-Tunica and
the Isle-Lake Charles in November 2000. Additionally, the Lady Luck-
Las Vegas had a full year of operations in the current year. The Lady
Luck-Las Vegas property was acquired in September 2000.

Food, beverage and other revenue increased $3.9 million when
compared to the prior year primarily as a result of a $3.5 million
increase in food, beverage and other revenue at the Rhythm City-
Davenport due to the full year of operations, $3.0 million in such
revenue generated by the Isle-Boonville that opened in the third fiscal
quarter of this year, partially offset by the $2.2 million decline in such
revenue at the Isle-Biloxi. Pari-mutuel commissions and fees have

remained stable compared to the prior year.

Casino operating expenses for the fiscal year ended April 28,
2002 totaled $203.9 million, or 19.3% of casino revenue, versus
$192.2 million, or 20.1% of casino revenue, for the fiscal vear ended
April 29, 2001. These expenses are primarily comprised of salaries,
wages and benefits and other operating expenses of the casinos. The
increase in casino operating expenses is commensurate with the

increase in casino revenue.

For the fiscal year ended April 28, 2002, state and local gaming
taxes totaled $227.1 million, or 21.5% of casino revenue, compared to
$192.6 million, or 20.1% of casino revenue, for the fiscal year ended
April 29, 2001, which is consistent with each state’s gaming tax rate for
the applicable fiscal years. The increase of $34.5 million in gaming taxes
or 17.9% was primarily the result of the increases in casino revenue at the
Isle-Kansas City, the Rhythm City-Davenport and the Isle-Boonville.
The increase was also due to higher tax rates at our Louisiana properties.
Legistation was passed during the 2001 Louisiana legislacive session that
increased the gaming tax for operaors from 18.5% to 21.5%. This 3%
increase was effective immediately in the Lake Charles market and at the

rate of 1% per year in the Bossier City market.

Operating expenses for the fiscal year ended April 28, 2002, also
included room expenses of $13.3 million, or 23.8% of gross room revenue
from the hotels at all casino properties except the Isle-Boonville compared
to $12.1 million, or 23.8% of gross room revenue for the fiscal year
ended April 29, 2001, for the same properties. The $1.3 million, or

MANAGEMENT”S DBISCUSSION ]5

IsLE OF CaPrI CASINOS, INC.

10.5% increase in room expense was equivalent to the increase in

room revenue.

Pari-mutuel operating costs of Pompano Park totaled
$16.8 million for the fiscal year ended April 28, 2002, compared
t0 $16.2 million for the fiscal year ended April 29, 2001. Such costs
consist primarily of compensation, benefits, purses, simulcast fees
and other direct costs of track operations. Pari-mutuel operating costs
as a percentage of pari-mutuel revenues have remained relatively
stable at 71.4% for the fiscal year ended April 28, 2002, compared
to 73.2% for the fiscal year ended April 29, 2001.

Food, beverage and other expenses totaled $35.8 million for the
fiscal year ended April 28, 2002, compared to $32.0 million for the
fiscal year ended April 29, 2001. These expenses consist primarily of
the cost of goods sold, salaries, wages and benefits and other operating
expenses. Food, beverage and other operating expenses as a percentage
of gross food, beverage and other revenues increased from 21.6% for
the fiscal year ended April 29, 2001, to 23.5% for the fiscal year
ended April 28, 2002 as a result of the start-up costs of the restaurants
at Isle-Boonville, which opened December 6, 2001, and a full year of
operating results of the Lady Luck-Las Vegas, acquired in September
2000 in the prior fiscal year. The Lady Luck-Las Vegas's food and
beverage expense expressed as a result of food and beverage revenue is

significantly higher than other Isle properties.

Marine and facilities expenses totaled $70.0 million, or 6.5% of
net revenue for the fiscal year ended April 28, 2002, versus $63.6 million,
or 6.5% of net revenue for the fiscal year ended April 29, 2001. These
expenses included salaries, wages and benefits, operating expenses of
the marine crews, insurance, housekeeping and general maintenance of
the riverboats and floating pavilions. The $6.4 million, or 10.0%
increase in marine and facility expenses are in line with the 10.4%
increase in net revenue during the same period. Marine and facilicies
expenses as a percentage of net revenue have remained stable at 6.5%

for the fiscal years ended April 28, 2002, and April 29, 2001.

Matketing and administrative expenses totaled $274.6 million,
or 25.3% of net revenue for the fiscal year ended April 28, 2002,
versus $249.9 million, or 25.4% of net revenue for the fiscal year
ended April 29, 2001. Marketing expenses included salaries, wages
and benefics of the marketing and sales departments, as well
as promotions, advertising, special events and entertainment.
Administrative expenses included administration and human
resource department expenses, rent, new development activities,

professional fees and property taxes. The $24.7 million, or
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9.9% increase in marketing and administrative expenses is in line with
the increase in net revenue. Marketing and administrative expenses as

a percentage of net revenue have remained stable.

The valuation charge for the fiscal year ended April 28, 2002
totaling $61.4 million reflects the impairment charge of $59.2 million
relating to the Isle-Tunica and the Lady Luck-Las Vegas, which adjusts
their net book values to estimated fair values less estimated costs to
sell. Also included in fiscal 2002 was an impairment charge of
$2.2 million relating to marine assets that have been in storage for
future development and will be offered for sale in fiscal 2003. In fiscal
2003, in connection with the sale or other disposition of the Isle-
Tunica and the Lady Luck-Las Vegas, we expect to pay approximately
$2.0 million related to involuntary termination costs. We expect to
recognize these costs as expenses and to fund these costs through
existing cash flows from operations before the end of calendar 2002.
The valuation allowance for the fiscal year ended April 29, 2001 totaling
$1.0 million consisted of the write-down of certain marine assets held for

development or sale to their net realizable value.

Pre-opening expenses of $3.9 million for the fiscal year ended
April 28, 2002 and $0.2 million for the fiscal year ended April 29,
2001 represent salaries, benefits, training, marketing and other
non-capitalizable costs, which were expensed in connection with the

opening of the Isle-Boonville in December 2001.

For the prior fiscal year ended April 29, 2001, other charges
totaling $8.2 million included a $3.0 million loss due to the write-off
of abandoned expansion projects assets at the Isle-Biloxi, a $2.9 million
loss due to the termination of the Enchanted Capri joint venture as a
result of Bankruptcy Court filings by Commodore Holdings, Lid.,
the operator of the Enchanted Capri and owner of the remaining
50% interest in the joint venture, a $1.4 million buyout of the Crowne
Plaza license at the Isle-Biloxi and a $0.9 million loss relating to the

write-off of the theater production contracts at the Isle-Tunica.

Depreciation and amertization expense was $72.1 million for
the fiscal year ended April 28, 2002, and $69.1 million for the fiscal
year ended April 29, 2001. These expenses relate to property and
equipment, berthing and concession rights and the amortization of
intangible assets. Depreciation expense increased by $17.7 million
compared to the prior year consistent with an increase in fixed assets
placed into service or acquired. This increase was partially offset by the
elimination of the amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets
of $14.7 million in 2002 due to our early adoption of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other

Intangible Assets,” effective April 30, 2001. During the fourth quarter
of fiscal 2002, we reclassified the Isle-Tunica’s and the Lady Luck-
Las Vegas' property and equipment as assets held for sale under
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 121, “Accounting
for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets
to be Disposed Of” due to the impairment of the assets. Under this
classification, we will no longer depreciate these assets. We estimate
that the benefit from suspending depreciation associated with the

assets held for sale will be approximately $7.1 million in fiscal 2003.

Interest expense was $88.3 million for the fiscal year ended
April 28, 2002 net of capitalized interest of $1.3 million and interest
income of $0.9 million versus $93.8 million for the fiscal year ended
April 29, 2001 net of capitalized interest of $3.8 million and interest
income of $5.1 million. Interest expense primarily relates to
indebredness incurred in connection with the acquisition of property,
equipment, leasehold improvements and berthing and concession rights.
Additionally, interest expense of $9.7 million net of interest income of
$0.2 million related to the Isle-Black Hawk is included in interest
expense for the fiscal year ended April 28, 2002. This compares to
interest expense of $11.1 million net of capitalized interest of $0.7
million and interest income of $0.2 million for the fiscal year ended
Aprit 29, 2001.

Our effective tax rate was 46.5% prior to extraordinary items for
the fiscal year ended April 28, 2002, and 44.9% for the fiscal year ended
April 29, 2001, which includes the effects of non-deductible goodwill
amortization for income tax purposes. The effective rax rate for the fiscal
year ended April 28, 2002, was relatively high as a result of the relatively
low state income tax benefit rate related to the impairment of assets at

the Isle-Tunica and the Lady Luck-Las Vegas.

Fiscal Year Ended April 29, 2001 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended
April 36, 2000

Gross revenue for the fiscal year ended April 29, 2001 was
$1.2 billion, which included $957.1 million of casino revenue,
$50.7 million of room revenue, $22.2 million of pari-mutuel
commissions and $148.3 million of food, beverage and other revenue.
This compares to gross revenue for the previous fiscal year ended April 30,
2000 of $759.8 million, which included $619.4 million of casino
revenue, $24.8 million of room revenue, $22.1 million of pari-mutuel

commissions and $93.6 million of food, beverage and other revenue.

Casine revenue increased $337.8 million, or 54.5% primarily as
a result of a full year of operations of the former Lady Luck properties

and the Isle-Tunica, approximately 11 months of operating results
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from the acquisition of the Isle-Kansas City, approximately eight
months of operating results from the acquisition of the Lady Luck-Las
Vegas, approximately seven months of results from the acquisition of
the Rhythm City-Davenport and the improvements art the Isle-Black
Hawk and the Isle-Lake Charles. Room revenue and food, beverage
and other revenue have increased primarily as a result of the acquisitions
of the former Lady Luck properties, the Isle-Kansas City, the Lady
Luck-Las Vegas, and the Rhythm City-Davenport, and the opening
of new hotels at the Isle-Black Hawk, the Isle-Tunica and the Isle-
Lake Charles. Pari-mutuel commissions and fees have remained stable

compared to the prior year.

Casino operating expenses for the fiscal year ended April 29,
2001 rotaled $192.2 million, or 20.1% of casino revenue, versus
$116.1 million, or 18.7% of casino revenue, for the fiscal year ended
April 30, 2000. These expenses are primarily comprised of safaries,
wages and benefits and other operating expenses of the casinos. The
increase in casino operating expenses is attributable to the additional
properties as well as improved casino revenue for the combined original

Isle of Capri properties.

Operating expenses for the fiscal year ended April 29, 2001 also
included room expenses of $12.1 million, or 23.8% of gross room revenue
from the hotels at the Isle-Lake Charles, the Isle-Bossier City, the Isle-
Biloxi, the Isle-Vicksburg, the Isle-Natchez, the Isle-Lula, the Isle-
Bettendotf, the Isle-Marquette, the Isle-Tunica, the Isle-Black Hawk,
the Lady Luck-Las Vegas and the Rhythm City-Davenport compared
to $5.8 million, or 23.5% of gross room revenue for the fiscal year
ended April 30, 2000, from the hotels at the Isle-Lake Charles, the
Isle-Bossier Ciy, the Isle-Biloxi, the Isle-Vicksburg, the Isle-Lula, the
Isle-Bettendorf, the Isle-Natchez and the Isle-Marquette. These
expenses directly relate to the cost of providing hotel rooms. Other
costs of the hotels are shared with the casinos and are presented in

their respective expense categories,

For the fiscal year ended April 29, 2001, state and local gaming
taxes were paid in Louisiana, Mississippi, Colorado, lowa, Missouri
and Nevada totaling $192.6 million, or 20.1% of casino revenue,
compared to $122.6 million, or 19.8% of casino revenue, for the fiscal
year ended April 30, 2000, which is consistent with each state’s gaming
tax rate for the applicable fiscal years. For the fiscal year ended April 30,
2000, state and local gaming taxes were only paid in Louisiana,
Mississippl, Jowa and Colorado. Legislation was passed that allowed
Louisiana riverboats, including the riverboats at the Isle-Lake Charles,
which had been required, to conduct cruises to remain permanently

dockside beginning April 1, 2001. The legislation also increased the
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gaming tax for operators from 18.5% to 21.5%.

Pari-mutuel operating costs of Pompano Park totaled $16.2 million
for the fiscal year ended April 29, 2001, compared to $16.4 million
for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2000. Such costs consist primarily
of compensation, benefits, purses, simulcast fees and other direct costs
of track operations. Pari-mutuel operating costs as a percentage of
pari-mutuel revenues have remained relatively stable at 73.2% for the
fiscal year ended April 29, 2001, compared to 74.4% for the fiscal
year ended April 30, 2000.

Food, beverage and other expenses totaled $32.0 million for the
fiscal year ended April 29, 2001, compared to $19.1 million for the
fiscal year ended April 30, 2000. These expenses consist primarily of
the cost of goods sold, salaries, wages and benefits and other operating
expenses of these departments. Food and beverage and other operating
expenses as a percentage of gross food, beverage and other revenues
increased from 20.4% for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2000, 1o
21.6% for the fiscal year ended April 29, 2001. This was attributable
to the inclusion of eight months of operations of the Lady Luck-Las
Vegas operations In the downtown Las Vegas market, whose food and
beverage expense is significantly higher than other Isle properties. The
increase was also due to the start-up costs related to the opening of
food and beverage outlets related to the opening of hotels at the Isle-
Lake Charles and the Tsle-Tunica and the newly acquired outlets at the
Isle-Kansas City that were not converted to Isle standards until the
fourth quarter 2001.

Marine and facilities expenses totaled $63.6 million for the
fiscal year ended April 29, 2001, versus $39.9 million for the fiscal
year ended April 30, 2000. These expenses include salaries, wages
and benefits, operating expenses of the marine crews, insurance,
housekeeping and general maintenance of the riverboats and floating
pavilions. These expenses have increased as a result of the increase in
the number of properties operated by the Isle of Capri and continued
expansion of our facilities. Marine and facilities expenses as a
percentage of net revenue have remained relatively stable at 6.5%
for the fiscal year ended April 29, 2001, compared to 6.2% for the
fiscal year ended April 30, 2000.

Marketing and administrative expenses totaled $249.9 million,
or 25.4% of net revenue, for the fiscal year ended April 29, 2001, versus
$167.6 million, or 25.9% of net revenue, for the fiscal year ended
April 30, 2000. Marketing expenses include salaries, wages and benefits
of the marketing and sales departments, as well as promotions, advertising,
special events and entertainment. Administrative expenses include

administration and human resource department expenses, rent, new




Z8 MANAGEMENT*S DISCUSSION |

ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.I

development activities, professional fees and property taxes. Marketing
and administrative expenses as a dollar amount have increased as a
result of the expansion in the number of properties operated by the
Isle of Capri and continued expansion of our facilities, but as a

percentage of net revenue have slightly decreased.

Pre-opening expenses of $0.2 million for the fiscal year ended
April 29, 2001 and $3.4 million for the fiscal year ended April 30,
2000 represent salaries, benefits, training, marketing and other
non-capitalizable costs, which were expensed in connection with the
opening of the Isle-Boonville in December 2001 and the Isle-Tunica
in July 1999.

The other charges of $8.2 million include a $3.0 million loss due
to the write-off of abandoned expansion projects assets at the Isle-Biloxi,
a $2.9 million loss due to the termination of the Enchanted Capri
joint venture as a result of Bankruptcy Court filings by Commodore
Holdings, Ltd., the operator of the Enchanted Capti and owner of the
remaining 50% interest in the joint venture, a $1.4 million buyout of
the Crowne Plaza license at the Isle-Biloxi, and a $0.9 million loss relating
to the write-off of the theater production contracts at the Isle-Tunica.

The valuation allowance totaling $1.0 million reflects the
write-down of marine assets held for development or sale to their

net realizable value.

Depreciation and amortization expense was $69.1 million for the
fiscal year ended April 29, 2001 and $42.3 million for the fiscal year
ended April 30, 2000. These expenses relate to property and equipment,
berthing and concession rights and the amortization of intangible assets.
The 63.2% increase in depreciation and amortization expense is

consistent with the increase in fixed assets placed into service or acquired.

Interest expense was $93.8 million for the fiscal year ended
April 29, 2001 net of capitalized interest of $3.8 million and interest
income of $5.1 million versus §55.6 million for the year ended
April 30, 2000 net of capitalized interest of $2.4 million and interest
income of $4.8 million. Interest expense primarily relates to
indebtedness incurred in connection with the acquisition of property,
equipment, leasehold improvements and berthing and concession
rights. Additionally, interest expense of $11.5 million net of
capitalized interest of $0.7 million and interest income of
$0.2 million related to the Isle-Black Hawk is included in interest
expense in fiscal 2001. This compares to interest expense of
$10.8 million, net of capitalized interest of $1.1 million and interest
income of $0.4 million in fiscal 2000.

Our results of operations for the fiscal year ended April 29, 2001

.
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included a gain on sale of assets of $0.3 million compared to
$3.1 million for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2000. Both gains
related to the sale of an option to purchase 135 acres of land adjacent

to Pompano Park.

Our effective tax rate was 44.9% prior to extraordinary items for
the fiscal year ended April 29, 2001, and 44.3% for the fiscal year
ended April 30, 2000, which includes the effects of non-deducible

goodwill amortization for income tax purposes.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At April 28, 2002, we had cash and cash equivalents of
$76.6 million, compared to cash and cash equivalents of $76.7 million
at April 29, 2001. The $0.1 million decrease in cash and cash
equivalents is the net result of $153.6 million net cash provided by
operating activities, $100.5 million net cash used in investing activities

and $53.2 million net cash used in financing activities.

Investing Activities

We invested $98.3 million in property and equipment during the
fiscal year ended April 28, 2002, primarily for the development of the
[sle-Boonville and implementation of a company-wide slot enhancement
program. Approximately $21.3 million was expended on capital
expenditures, which enhance the value of the property or prolong
its useful life.
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The following table reflects expenditures for property and equipment on major projects:

Actual Projected

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Ended 4/29/01 Ended 4/28/02 Ended 4/27/03

Property Project {dollars in millions)

Isle-Boonville Develop casino $ 256 $ 357 $ 10
Isle-Kansas City Renovations 126 [.5 -
Isle-Lake Charles Construct hotel 244 04 -
Isle-Tunica Construct hotel & two theaters 314 10 -
Isle-Black Hawk (57% owned) Construct hotel 7.1 - -
Lady Luck-Las Vegas Renovations |4 |4 02
Lady Luck Properties Convert to Isle 318 27 -
Rhythm City-Davenport Renovations 175 [.6 -
All Properties Slot program - 327 303
All Properties Enhancement 74 213 334
Total $ 1592 $ 983 $ 649

In May 2000, we acquired the Isle-Boonville and spent 19 months
developing the casino project. We opened the facility in December
2001. The total investment in this casino project is approximately
$71.0 million, which includes the purchase price of $11.5 million,

a portion of which was allocated to goodwill. Approximately
$6.6 million of pre-opening and other expenditures were incurred
through the opening of the facility. As of April 28, 2002, we spent
$67.9 million on chis project.

We made $21.3 million in capital improvements during fiscal
2002 to maintain our existing facilities and remain competitive in our
markets and $32.7 million for our slot enhancement program. We
expect to make $33.4 million in capital improvements during fiscal
2003 to maintain our existing facilities and remain competitive in our
markets and $30.3 million for our slot enhancement program.

Financing Activities

During the fiscal year ended April 28, 2002, we used net cash of
$53.2 million in the following financing activities:

* We borrowed $50.0 million under the “Greenshoe Option” on
our term loans that was used to reduce the revolving credit
facilicy portion of our senior credit facility.

* The Isle-Black Hawk borrowed $80.0 million under a new
secured credit facility and used the proceeds primarily to redeem
$75.0 million in principal outstanding and to pay $4.9 million in
payment premiums on its 13% first mortgage notes. '

» We issued $200.0 million in 9% senior subordinated notes due 2012
and used the proceeds to partially repay our senior credit facility.

+ We entered into an amended and restated credit facility which
refinanced our prior facility.

* We made principal payments on our senior credit facility and other
debr as well as premium payments for the early retirement of debt
of $596.7 million mainly from refinancings and new borrowings.

* We made net reductions to our line of credit of $18.0 million.

* We purchased 1.1 million shares of our common stock at a total
cost of $8.0 million and made cash distributions to a minority
partner totaling $7.7 million.

On June 18, 2001, we exercised the “Greenshoe Option” under
our $600.0 million senior credit facility to add $50.0 million of additional
term loans under the same terms, conditions and covenants to bring
the total senior credir facility to $650.0 million. Proceeds from the
loans were used to reduce outstanding borrowings under our

$125.0 million revolving loan facility.

On November 16, 2001, the Isle-Black Hawk entered into a
$90.0 million secured credit facility that Is non-recourse debt to us
primarily for the purpose of funding the redemption of the 13% first
mortgage notes, The secured credit facility provides for a $10.0 million
revolving credit facilicy, a $40.0 million Tranche A term loan maturing
on November 16, 2005 and a $40.0 million Tranche B term loan
maturing on November 16, 2006. The Isle-Black Hawk is required to
make quarterly principal payments on the term loan portions of the
new credit facility that began in March 2002. Such payments on the
Tranche A term loan initially will be $2.0 million per quarter with

scheduled increases to $2.5 million per quarter commencing March
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2003 and to $3.0 million per quarter commencing March 2005. Such
payments on the Tranche B term loan initially will be $0.1 million per
quarter with a scheduled increase to $9.6 million per quarter commencing
March 2006.

On December 18, 2001, the Isle-Black Hawk redeemed all of its
outstanding 13% first mortgage notes in the principal amount of
$75.0 million. The redemption price of the first mortgage notes was
106.5% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest to
the date of redemption, equaling a redemption price of $1,065 for
each $1,000 principal amount of notes, plus accrued and unpaid
interest. We recorded an extraordinary loss of $2.4 million, net of
taxes of $1.4 million, during the fiscal year ended April 28, 2002, on
the extinguishment of the first mortgage notes related to the payment

of early payment premiums and the write-off of debt acquisition costs.

On March 27, 2002, we issued $200.0 million of 9% senior
subordinated notes due 2012. These notes are guaranteed by all of
our significant subsidiaries, excluding the subsidiaries that own and
operate the Isle-Black Hawk. The 9% notes are general unsecured
obligations and rank junior to all existing and future senior indebtedness,
senior to any subordinated indebtedness and equally with all of
our existing and future senior subordinated debs, including the
$390.0 million in aggregate principal amount of our 8.75% senior
subordinated notes. Interest on the 9% notes is payable semi-annually
on each March 15 and September 15 through maturity. Interest
payments for both the 8.75% notes and the 9% notes total
$26.1 million semi-annually. Proceeds from the 9% notes of
$195.0 million were used to partially repay the term loans under
the senior credit facility. We recorded an extraordinary loss of
$1.9 million, net of taxes of $1.3 million, during the fiscal year ended
April 28, 2002, on the partial repayment of the senior credit facility

related to the write-off of debt acquisition costs.

On April 26, 2002, we entered into an amended and cestated
senior credit facility which refinanced our prior facility. This amended
and restated senior credit facility consists of 2 $250.0 million revolving
credit facility maturing on April 25, 2007, and a $250.0 million term
loan facility maturing on April 25, 2008. We are required to make
quarterly principal payments on the $250.0 million term loan portion
of our amended and restated senior credi facility. Such payments are
initially $625,000 per quarter searting in June 2002 and increase to
$59.4 million per quarter beginning in June 2007. In addition, we
are required to make substantial quarterly interest payments on the
outstanding balance of our amended and restated senior credit facility.

The proceeds were used to refinance $336.8 million of the prior facility.

Our amended and restated senior credit facility, among other
things, restricts our ability to borrow money, make capital expenditures,
use assets as security in other transactions, make restricted payments or
restricted investments, incur contingent obligations, sell assets and
enter into leases and transactions with affiliates. In addition, our credit
facility requires us to meer certain financial ratios and tests, including:
a minimum consolidated net worth test, a maximum consolidared
total leverage test, a maximum consolidated senior leverage test, and
a minimum consolidated fixed charge coverage test. As of April 28,

2002, we were in compliance with all debt covenants.

We expect that available cash and cash from future operations,
as well as borrowings under our amended and restated senior credit
facility, will be sufficient to fund future expansion and planned capital
expenditures, service senior debt and meet working capital requirements.
There is no assurance that we will have the capital resources to make
all of the expenditures described above or that planned capital investments
will be sufficient to allow us to remain competitive in its existing
markets. In addition, the indentures governing our 8.75% notes and
our 9% notes restrict, among other things, our ability to borrow

money, create liens, make restricted payments and sell assets.

We are highly leveraged and may be unable to obtain additional
debt or equity financing on acceptable terms. As a result, limitations
on our capital resources could delay or cause us to abandon certain
plans for capital improvements at our existing properties and development
of new properties. We will continue to evaluate our planned capital
expenditures at each of our existing locations in light of the operating

performance of the facilities at such locations.

Subsequent Event
Proposed Stock Offering

On May 24, 2002, we filed a registration statement with the U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) for a proposed offering
of up 10 6,152,500 shares of our common stock (which includes
802,500 shares to cover over-allotments). We would sell up to
4,802,500 of such shares and certain stockholders, consisting of
Bernard Goldstein, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, and
certain members of his family and affiliated entities would sell up to
the remaining 1,350,000 shares. The registration statement relating
to these shares has not become effective, and we can give no assurances
that it will become effective. In addition, we can provide no assurances
as to whether any such offering will ultimately occur, the timing of
any such offering or the price at which any shares may be sold, and

therefore, the amount of proceeds we might raise.




Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143, “Accounting for
Asset Rerirement Obligations” (“SFAS 143”) which requires companies
to record the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation in
the period in which it is incurred and a corresponding increase in the
carrying amount of the related long-lived asset. SFAS 143 will be effective
for financial statements for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002. We
believe the adoption of SFAS 143 will not have a material impact on our

financial position or results of consolidared operations.

In October 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”
(“SEAS 144”), which addresses financial accounting and reporting for
the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets and supersedes SFAS
121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for
Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of” and the accounting and reporting
provisions of APB Opinion No. 30, “Reporting the Results of
Operations” for a disposal of a segment of a business. SFAS 144 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. We do
not expect that the adoption of SFAS 144 will have a significant

impact on our financial position and results of consolidated operations.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
Marker risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in market
rates and prices, including interest rates, foreign currency exchange
rates, commodity prices and equity prices. Our primary exposure to
market risk is interest rate risk associated with our senior credit facility

and the Isle-Black Hawk’s secured credir facility.

Senior Credit Facility

We entered into three interest rate swap agreements in the fourth
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quarter of fiscal 2001 and one tnterest rate swap agreement in the first
quarter of fiscal 2002 that effectively convert portions of our variable
rate debt to a fixed-rate basis for the next one to two years, thus reducing
the impact of interest rate changes on furure interest expense. The
notional value of the swaps that were designated as cash flow hedges was
$200.0 million, or 61.5% of our variable rate term debt outstanding
under our senior credit facility as of April 28, 2002. We evaluate the
effectiveness of these hedged transactions on a quarterly basis. The interest
rate swaps terminate as follows: $30.0 million in 2003 and $150.0 million
in 2004. We found no portion of the hedging instruments to be ineffective
during the fiscal year ended April 28, 2002. Accordingly, no gains or

losses have been recognized on these cash flow hedges.

Isle-Black Hawli’s Secured Credit Facility
The Isle-Black Hawk entered into three interest rate swap

agreements in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002 that effectively convert
portions of their variable rate debt to a fixed-rate basis for the next three
years, thus reducing the impact of interest rate changes on future interest
expense. The notional value of the swaps that were designated as cash
flow hedges was $40.0 million or 51.3% of their variable rate term debt
outstanding under the Isle-Black HawKs secured credit facility as of
April 28, 2002. The interest rate swaps terminate in 2005. We evaluate
the effectiveness of these hedged transactions on a quarterly basis. We
found no portion of the hedging instruments to be ineffective during
the fiscal year ended April 28, 2002. Accordingly, no gain or losses have
been recognized on these cash flow hedges.

The following table provides information at April 28, 2002,
about our financial instruments that are sensitive to changes in
interest rates. The table presents principal cash flows (in millions)

and related weighred average interest rates by expected maturity dates.

= lnterest Rave Sensiciviey Principal (Notonal) Amouns by Bxpected Maturicy Average Inverest (Swap) Rage
Fiscal Year 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Thereafter Fair Value
(dolfars in millions) Total 412802
Liabilities
Long-term Debt, including Current Portion
FixedRate.................. $ 28 $ 28 $ 25 $ 15 $ 13 §5960 $ 6069 $ 6247
Average Interest Rate. ........ 89% 8.8% 8.8% 8.8% 83% 89%
Variable Rate ............... $ 114 $ 129 $ 134 $214 $ 313 $3125 $ 4029 $ 4045
Average Interest Rate. . ....... 54% 7.3% 82% 8.6% 88% 8%
Interest Rate Derivative Financial Instruments Related to Debt
Interest Rate Swaps
Pay Fixed/Receive Variable . . . .. $ 500 $1500 $ 400 $ - $ - $ - $2400 $ (52
Average PayRate ............ 48% 48% 42% - - -
Average Receive Rate. ... .. 26% 4.6% 54% - - -
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS = ;
(I shousands, escepe per share data) - R i
Fiscal Year Ended April 28, April 29,
2002 2001
Assets:
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents . .. ..o $ 76597 $ 76659
ACCOUNES PECEIVADIE . . o o o 9,857 9203
[ncome tax receivable. . ... o - 4,700
Deferred INCOME TaXES. . .« .ottt 10,235 14536
Prepaid expenses and Other assets. ... .. ooo oot 15,113 16,359
Property held forsale. ... ..o o 24,572 -
Total CUMENT BSSEES. . o et 136,374 121,457
Property and equUIPMENt——NEL . . .\ttt 803,507 872,168
OTHER ASSETS:
Property held forsale. .. ..o e - 2,860
GooaWIll . 305,850 291,755
Other INtangible @ssets. . ..ottt 58,744 66,411
Deferred financing costs, net of accumulated amortization of $7,984 in 2002 and $8,533 in 2001 .. 23,730 21,856
Restricted Cash . ..ot 3,677 4,300
Prepaid deposits and other. ... o 4,944 2,100
Deferred INCOME TaXES. . . vttt 3,397 -
TOtAl ASSEES vt e e e $1,340,223 $1,382,507

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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- CONSOLIDATED: rAL{\NGL SMELT@ (@@w D ) B
Al Thowsands. excepe per shase danah - T T T L T T o
Fiscal Year Ended April 28, April 29,
2002 2001
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity:
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current maturities of long-term debt . . ... . o $ 14176 $ 20936
Accounts payable trade . ... .. $ 22,541 $ 22635
Accrued liabilities:
=T 5,276 9521
Payroll and related. .. ... oo o 47,186 35653
Property and other taXes. .. ..o 15,673 14963
INCOME TAXES. « o et ettt et 13,993 -
Progressive jackpots and slot club awards. ... ... o 11,903 2616
O Nl . e 27,862 43222
Total current liabilities. . ... 158,610 159,546
Long-term debt, less current matUrities. ... ... 995,123 1,018,185
Deferred INCOME AXES . . .\ttt e - 15,563
Other accrued abilties. . o 16,302 9,670
MINOTItY INEEIESt .\ ot 10,990 13902
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value; 2,000 shares authorized, none issued. . ... ..o s - -
Common stock, $.01 par value; 45,000 shares authorized; shares
issued and outstanding 31,826 at April 28,2002 and 30,615 at April 29,2001 ............... 314 306
Class B common stock, $.01 par value; 3,000 shares authorized; none issued. .. .. ..., - -
Additional Paid-in CaPIEL ... . oot 135,432 129,408
Unearned COMPENSALION . . 1. v i vt ir ittt e e (1,352) (1.,800)
Retained Barmings. ... oo 54,753 54,788
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of income tax benefit of $2,364 in 2002. .. .......... {4,061) -
185,086 182,702
Treasury stock, 3,107 shares at April 28,2002 and 1,959 shares at April 29,2001, .......... ... (25,888) (16,661)
Total stockholders' equity. .. ..o 159,198 166,04
Total lizbilities and stockholders equity. . ..o $ 1,340,223 $ 1,382907

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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1o oy s excepepes Share Jata) LT
Hiscal Year Ended April 28,2002  April 29,2001 April 30,2000 W
REVENUES:
CaSINO . $ 1,056,967 $ 957,147 $61935]
RIS . e 55,957 50,734 24,809
Pari-mutuel commissions and fees. ... oo 23,534 22,152 22,064
Food, beverage and other. .. ... .. i 152,187 148315 93572
GrOSS FEVENUES . .. oottt 1,288,645 1,178,348 759,796
Less promational allowances. . ....ocoiv o 203,334 195,547 113,092
NEETEVENUES . e 1,085,311 982,801 646,704
OPERATING EXPENSES:
a8 L o e 203,855 192,209 116,105
GAMING TAXES . . et 227,067 192,571 122572
ROOMS . e 13,345 12,072 5824
Pari-mutuel .. ..o 16,806 16212 16,406
Food, beverage and Other ... o 35,774 31988 19,089
Marine and facilities. ... ... o 70,024 63,644 39,862
Marketing and administrative . . ... 274,560 245,888 167,584
Accrued litigation settlement ... ... 2,600 - -
Valuation charge . ... 61,362 1,032 -
Pre-0pening eXPenses. . ... vt 3,871 176 3,420
Other Charges. ..ot - 8,165 -
Depreciation and amortization ... ......ove it 72,064 69,112 42,346
Total operating expenses . ... ... 981,328 837,069 533,208
OPerating INCOME . . . ..o e e e 103,983 145,732 113,496
INErest eXPENSE . ... oot e (89,177) (98,943) (60,413)
IErESt INCOME. 1 e 850 5,107 4,780
Gain on disposal of assets. . ..o 125 271 3,106
MINOEIY IMEIESt . o et (7,676) (6,357) (3,700)
Equity in income (loss) of unconsolidated joint ventures..................... (38) (162) 259
Income before income taxes and extraordinary 10SS........o.oovviiviiiinniiiennn, 8,067 45,648 57,528
[NCOME 1aX PrOVISION . « .. e e e et e et e e e e e 3,753 20,504 25473
Income before extraordinary 10ss ... o 4,314 25,144 32,055
Extraordinary loss on extinguishment of debt, net of income tax benefit
of $2,672 in 2002, $0 in 2001 and $634in 2000 ... ............... ..., (4,349) ~ (984)
NEtINCOME (I0SS) . . v v e $ (35) $ 25144 $ 31071
EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE-BASIC:
Income before extraordinary 105s. ... ..o $ 0.15 $ 0.84 $ .22
Extraordinary loss, net of income taxes ............... i oo (0.15) ~ (0.04)
N INCOME. o e $ - $ 084 $ 118

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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: ~0F-CAPRI CASINO gg iN@,
@.NSC&JDATED STATE

(p USRS, w Rt per share doia)

BMENTS OF OPERATIONS (CONT'D.) - -

Fiscal Year Ended April 28,2002  April 29,2001  April 30,2000
EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE— ASSUMING DILUTION:
Income before extraordinary l0SS .. ..o vv vt $ 0.15 $ 080 $ 115
Extraordinary loss, net of Income taxes .. ... (0.15) - (0.09)
Nt NCOMIE. o ottt $ - $ 080 $ L
Weighted average basic shares. . ... i 28,162 29,894 26,327
Weighted average diluted shares. ... ... oo 29,765 31513 27925

il Mm@;

‘mm:}gﬂg EQM g

Shares of Additional Accum. Other Retained Total
Common  Common  Paid-in Unearned ~ Comprehensive Treasury Earnings  Stockholders’
Stock Stock Capital  Compensation Loss Stock  (Deficit) Equity

Balance, April 25, 1999............. 23569 $236  $ 63146 - $ - % - $(1427)  $ 61,955
Exercise of stock options and warrants. . 500 5 2727 - - - - 2,732
Issuance of common stock

for acquisition. .. .......... ... 6,300 63 59,699 - - - - 59,762
Netlncome. ..................... - - - - - - 31,071 31,071
Balance, April 30,2000............. 30,369 304 125572 - - - 29,644 155,520
Exercise of stock options. . ............ 246 2 [,136 - - - - [,138
Grant of nonvested stock . ............ - - 2,700 (2,700) - - - -
Purchase of treasury stock. ........... - - - - - (16,661) - (16,661)
Amortization of unearned

COMPENSAtion. .. ............... - - - 900 - - - 900
Netlncome. .........oooviioin, - - — - - - 25,144 25,144
Balance, April 29,2001 ..., ....... 30615 306 129,408 (1,800) - (16661) 54,788 166,041
Netloss.......ooovv it - - - - - - (35) (35
Unrealized loss on interest rate swap

contracts, net of income tax

benefit of $2364............. - - ~ (4,061) - - (4.061)
Comprehensive loss. . ..., 30615 306 129,408 (1,800) (4061)  (l16661) 54,753 161,945
Exercise of stock options

and warrants .. .. ... 1211 8 6,096 - - (1,205) - 4,899
Grant of nonvested stock .. ........... - - (72) 72 - - - -
Amortization of unearned

compensation. .. ... - - - 376 - - - 376
Purchase of treasury stock . ........... - - - -~ - (8022) - (8,022)
Balance, April 28,2002, ....... ... .. 31826 $314 3135432 $(1.352) $(4061) $(25888) $54753  $159,198

2

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS T@Fif@}_‘gm : —

(ln thousands)
Fiscal Year Ended April 28, April 29, April 30,
2002 2001 2000
Operating activitiess
Net INCOME (0SS) .+ v v et $ (35) $ 25144 $ 31071
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE NET INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Depreciation and amortization. . ... o 72,064 69,112 42,346
Amortization of deferred financing costs ............ oo 3,863 4,388 2969
Amortization of unearned compensation. . ... oo 376 900 -
Gain on disposal 0f aSSES . ... v (125) 279 (3,106)
Other charges. ... oo. oo - 8,165 -
Valuation Charge ... o 61,362 1,032 -
Deferred iNCOME 1aXES. . .. oot 12,291 {1,068 17410
Equity in (income) loss of unconsclidated joint venture. . ...l 38 162 (259)
Extraordinary loss (net of income taxes). .. ... ... .. o oo, 4,349 - 984
MINOrity INTEreSt . .. ..o 7,676 6,358 3,700
Changes in current assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable .. ... (654) (2,020) 363
Income tax receivable. .. ... o 4,700 (4,700) 8,143
Prepaid expenses and otherassets ... 1,246 (6475) (1,666)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. . ... (13,536) (38713) 28,526
Net cash provided by operating activities. . .. ......... i i il e 153,615 74,150 130,481
Investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment. ... ......ovve oo (98,344) (159,326) (104,568)
Net cash paid for acquISIIONS. . .. ... 0o - (111,399 (119,355)
Sale of short-term investments. . ... ... - 39,044 (39.044)
Proceeds from sales of assets. . ... 125 271 6,134
Investments in and advances o joint ventures. . ... (1,055) (1,324) 196
RESIICIEd €SN .1 v 623 [ 256 2,559
Prepaid deposits and other. . ... oo (1,827) 6,100 (3.879)
Net cash used in Investing aCtiVItIES . . ... .o (100,478) (225,378) (257,957)
Financing activities
Proceeds from debt. . ... oo 580,000 2,238 475,061
Net proceeds from (reduction in) line of credit ... ........... ..o o, (18,000) 93,000
Principal payments on debt and cash paid to retire debt. .. ................ .. . {596,697) (12021 (258,078)
Deferred financing CoStS .. .. oot e (7,631) (779) (9,384)
Purchase of treasury Stock ... ..o (8,022) (16,659) -
Proceeds from exercise of stock options and warrants .............. el 4,830 f136 2732
Cash distribution to minority partner . .......ovivt o (7,679) -
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities. .. ..................o oo, (53,199) 59915 210,331

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLows (CONT'D.)
btttz e o

Fiscal Year Ended April 28, April 29, April 30,
2002 2001 2000
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents. . ..., (62) (G1,313) 82,855
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period. .. ........... . oo 76,659 167,972 85,117
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period. .. ... $ 76,597 $ 76659 $ 167972
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
NET CASH PAYMENTS (RECEIPTS) FOR:
= $ 77821 $ 99620 $ 5209
IMCOME 1BXES. . . ottt e (6,439) 22,337 (1,933)
Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing and financing activities:
OTHER:
Construction costs funded through accounts payable.................... ... - 2,809 2,453
ACQUISITIONS OF BUSINESSES:
Fair value of assets acquired. . ... . ~ 189,772 496417
Less fair value of liabilities assumed . .. ... ~ (78,373) (317300)
Less Stock issUBd. ..o - - (59,762)
Net cash Payment. .. ... e vt - 11,399 119,355

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. Cash equivalents are placed primarily with high-credit-quality financial

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements institutions. The carrying amount of cash equivalents approximates

< . - fai f the sh i i :
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies air value because of the short maturity of these instruments

Basis of Presentation Inventories

Hawk, Colorado. All but ewo of these gaming facilities operate under Years
the name “Isle of Capri” and feature our distinctive tropical island .
. Slot machines, software and computers. ............... 3
theme. In addition, the Company wholly owns and operates a ‘ ‘
. . b : Furniture, fixtures and equipment . ................... 5-10
pari-mutuel harness racing facility in Pompano Beach, Florida. ‘
Leasehold improvements. ... 10-39.5
Fiscal Year-End Riverboats and floating pavilions. ... ......o.ovov. s, 25
The Company's fiscal year ends on the last Sunday in April. Buildings and improvements. ... ..o 395

Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. (the “Company” or “Isle of Capri”)
was incorporated as a Delaware corporation on February 14, 1990.
The Company, through its subsidiaries, is engaged in the business of
developing, owning and operating branded gaming facilities and related
lodging and entertainment facilities in growing markets in the United
States. The Company wholly owns and operates thirteen gaming facilities
located in Bossier City and Lake Charles, Louisiana; Biloxi, Lula,
Natchez, Vicksburg, and Tunica, Mississippi; Boonville and Kansas
City, Missouri; Bettendorf, Marquette and Davenport, lowa; and
Las Vegas, Nevada. The Company also owns a 57% interest in and

receives a management fee for operating a gaming facility in Black

This fiscal year creates more comparability of the Company’s quarterly
operations by generally having an equal number of weeks (13)

and weekend days (26) in each quarter. Periodically, this system
necessitates a 53-week year and fiscal 2000 was one such year. Fiscal
2002 commenced on April 30, 2001 and ended on April 28, 2002.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the
Company and its subsidiaries. Investments in unconsolidated affiliates
that are 50% or less owned are accounted for under the equity
method. All significant intercompany balances and transactions

have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilides, at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual

results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased

with an original maturity of three months or less as cash equivalents.

Tnventories generally consist of food and beverage and retail
merchandise, and are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is

determined by the weighted-average method.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Maintenance and
repairs that neither materially add to the value of the property nor
appreciably prolong its life are charged to expense as incurred. Gains
or losses on dispositions of property and equipment are included in
the determination of income. Depreciation is computed using the

straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives of the assets:

Capital leases are depreciated over the estimated useful life of the assets

or the life of the lease, whichever is shorter.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill, representing the excess of the cost over the net identifiable
tangible and intangible assets of acquired businesses, is stated at cost.
Other intangible assets represent the value of licenses, trademarks and
player databases acquired by the Company. Through April 29, 2001,
these assets were amortized using the straight-line method, generally
over a twenty-five year period. In June 2001, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board issued Statements of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 141, “Business Combinations,” and No. 142, “Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets,” effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2001. These statements require that the purchase
method of accounting be used for all business combinations initiated
after June 30, 2001 and prohibic the pooling-of-interest method and
change the accounting for goodwill from an amortization method to
an impairment-only approach. The carrying value of goodwill and
other intangible assets is reviewed periodically to determine whether
any impairment has occurred. The Company has elected early adoption
effective April 30, 2001, and ceased the amortization of goodwill and

other intangible assets at that time.




Long-lived Assets

The Company periodically evaluates the carrying value of long-lived
assets to be held and used in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of
Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of”
(“SFAS 1217). SFAS 121 requires impairment losses to be recorded on
long-lived assets used in operations when indicators of impairment are
present and the undiscounted cash flows estimated to be generated by
those assets are less than the assets” carrying amounts. In that event, a
loss is recognized based on the amount by which the carrying amount
exceeds the fair market value of the long-lived assets. Loss on long-lived
assets to be disposed of is determined in a similar manner, except that
fair market values are reduced for the cost of disposal. Based on its
review, other than the asset impairment write-downs noted in Note
15, the Company believes that as of April 28, 2002 there were no

significant impairments of its longlived assets.

Deferred Financing Costs
The costs of issuing long-term debt are capitalized and are being

amortized over the term of the related debt.

Self-Insurance
The Company is self-insured for various levels of general liability,
workers' compensation, and employee medical and life insurance
coverage. Self-insurance reserves are estimated based on the Company’s
claims experience and are included in current accrued liabilities on the

consolidated balance sheets.

Slot Chub Awards
The Company provides slot patrons with incentives based on the
dollar amount of play on slot machines. An accrual has been established
based on an estimare of the outstanding value of these incentives, udlizing
the age and prior history of redemptions. This amount is reflected as a

current accrued liabilicy on the consolidated balance sheets.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities
Effective April 30, 2001, the Company adopted Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities,” (“SFAS 133”) as amended. The
Company utilizes derivative financial instruments to manage interest
rate risk associated with variable rate borrowings. Derivative financial
instruments are intended to reduce the Company’s exposure to interest
rate risk. The Company accounts for changes in the fair value of a
derivative instrument depending on the intended use of the derivative
and the resulting designation, which is established at the inception of
a derivative. SFAS 133 requires that a company formally document, at
the inception of a hedge, the hedging relationship and the entitys risk
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management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge, including
idendification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction,
the nature of the risk being hedged, the method used to assess
effectiveness and the method that will be used to measure hedge
ineffectiveness of derivative instruments that receive hedge accounting
treatment. For derivative inscruments designated as cash flow hedges,
changes in fair value, to the extent the hedge is effective, are recognized
in other comprehensive income until the hedged item is recognized in
earnings. Hedge effectiveness is assessed quarterly based on the total

change in the derivative’s fair value.

Revenue Recognition

In accordance with gaming industry practice, the Company
recognizes casino revenues as the net win from gaming activities, which
is the difference between gaming wins and losses. Casino revenues are
net of accruals for anticipated payouts of progressive slot jackpots and
certain table games. Such anticipated jackpot payments are reflected as
current liabilities in the accompanying balance sheets. Revenues from
the hotel, food, beverage, entertainment, and the gift shop are recognized

at the time the related service or sale is performed/made.

Net Revenues

Net revenues do not include the retail amount of food, beverage
and other items provided gratuitously to customers. These amounts

that are included in promotional allowances were as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended April 28, April 29, April 30,
(In thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Rooms ............ $ 30569 § 25856 $ 61265
Food and beverage .. 93,192 95,325 12,365
Other............. 3,336 3,555 [316
Customer loyalty

programs. ....... 76,237 70811 38,146
Total promotional

allowances. ...... $203,334  $195547  $113092 |

The estimated cost of providing such complimentary services that

is included in casino expense was as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended April 28, April 29, April 30,
{In thousands) 2002 2001 2000

Rooms .. .......... $ 15315 312620 $ 5880
Food and beverage . . 72,052 72,166 46,323
Other............. 1,100 1,263 451

Total costs of compli-
mentary services.. _ $ 88,467 $ 86049 $ 52654
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Effective for fiscal 2001, the Company adopted new guidance issued
by the Emerging Issues Task Force (‘EITF”) of the Financial Accounting
Standards Board relative to EITF Issue No. 00-14, “Accounting for
Certain Sales Incentives,” and EITF Issue No. 00-22, “Accounting for
Points and Certain Other Time-Based Sales Incentive Offers, and Offers
for Free Products or Services to Be Delivered in the Future.” EITF Issue
No. 00-14 requires the redemption of coupons for cash to be recognized
as a reduction of revenue and EITF Issue No. 00-22 requires the
redemption of “points” for cash to be recognized as a reduction of
revenue. The Company has complied with the requirements of this

new guidance in the accompanying statements of operations.

Advertsing
Advertising costs are expensed the first time such advertisement
appeats. Total advertising costs (including direct mail marketing)
were $18.7 million in fiscal 2002, $21.1 million in fiscal 2001 and
$14.7 million in fiscal 2000.

Preopening Expense
Pre-opening, pre-operating and organization activities are expensed

as incurred,

Capitalized Interest
The interest cost associated with major development and construcdon
projects is capitalized and included in the cost of the project. When no
debt is incurred specifically for a project, interest is capitalized on
amounts expended on the project using the weighted-average cost of
the Company’s outstanding borrowings. Capitalization of interest ceases
when the project is substantially complete or development activity is

suspended for more than a brief period.

Equity Method of Accounting for Investments
Investments in companies in which the Company has a 20% to
50% interest are carried at cost, adjusted for the Company’s proportionate

share of their operating and financial activities.

Inceme Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for in accordance with the provisions
of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, “Accounting
for Income Taxes.” Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for
the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities
and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income
in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be
recovered or settled. The effect of a change in tax rates related to
deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognized in income in the period

that includes the enactment date.

Earnings (Loss) per Share of Commen Stock

In accordance with the provisions of Financial Accounting
Standards Board’s Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 128, “Earnings Per Share,” basic earnings (loss) per share (“EPS”)
is computed by dividing net income (loss) applicable to common
stock by the weighted-average common shares outstanding during the
period. Diluted EPS reflects the additional dilution for all potentially

dilutive securities such as stock options.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company grants stock options for a fixed number of shares
to employees with an exercise price equal to the fair value of the shares
at the date of grant. The Company accounts for stock option grants in
accordance with APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued
to Employees™ ("APB 25”) and related interpretations. Under APB 25,
because the exercise price of the Company’s employee stock options
equals the market price of the underlying stock on the date of grant,

no compensation expense is recognized.

Certain Risks and Uncertainties

The Company’s operations are dependent on the continued
licensing or qualification of the Company. Such licensing and
qualification are reviewed periodically by the gaming authorities in

the state of operation.

The Company receives a significant amount of its revenue from
patrons within 50 miles of the properties. If economic conditions in
these areas were to decline materially or additional casino licenses were

awarded in these locations, the Company’s results of operations could

be materially affected.

Reclassification

The consolidated financial statements for prior years reflect certain

reclassifications to conform with the current year presentation.

Recently-Issued Accounting Standards

In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143, “Accounting
for Asset Retirement Obligations” (“SFAS 143”), which requires
companies to record the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement
obligation in the period in which it is incurred and a corresponding
increase in the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset.

SFAS 143 will be effective for financial statements for fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2002. The Company believes the adoption
of SFAS 143 will not have a material impact on its financial position

or results of consolidated operations.




In October 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
issued “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets” Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144,
(“SFAS 1447), which addresses financial accounting and reporting for
the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets and supersedes SFAS
121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for
Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of,” and the accounting and
reporting provisions of APB Opinion No. 30, “Reporting the Results
of Operations” for a disposal of a segment of a business. SFAS 144 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. The
Company does not expect that the adoption of the Statemenc will
have a significant impact on the Company's financial position and

results of consolidated operations.

2. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following:

Fiscal Year Ended April 28, April 29,
(In thousands) 2002 2001
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:
Land and land improvements. . . . .. $ 126456 § 126784
Leasehold improvemerts. . ....... 117,849 110,727
Buildings and improvements. .. . ... 372,933 414410
Riverboats and floating pavilions . . . 163,399 158,246
Furniture, fixtures and equipment . . 259,201 224638
Construction in progress......... 6,261 31,398
Total property and equipment.. 1,046,099 1,066,203
Less accumulated depreciation
and amortization. ............ 242,592 194,035
Property and equipment, net... $ 803,507  $ 872,168

Interest capitalized totaled $1.3 million in fiscal 2002, $3.8 million
in fiscal 2001 and $2.4 million in fiscal 2000, Depreciation expense
for property and equipment totaled $72.1 million in fiscal 2002,
$54.7 million in fiscal 2001 and $35.1 million in fiscal 2000.

3. Isle of Capri Black Hawk L.L.C.
On April 25, 1997, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Casino America of Colorado, formed the Jsle-Black Hawk,  limited liability
company, with Blackhawk Gold, Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Nevada
Gold & Casinos, Inc. The Isle-Black Hawk owns a casino in Black Hawk,
Colorado, which opened on December 30, 1998. The Company has a 57%
indirect ownership interest in the Isle-Black Hawk.

4. Property Held for Sale
Property held for sale at April 28, 2002 consists primarily of the
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Isle-Tunica and the Lady Luck-Las Vegas (see footnote 15). The balance
also includes land in Cripple Creek, Colorado, a riverboat, a floating
pavilion and several barges. Property held for sale at April 29, 2001
consists primarily of land in Cripple Creek, Colorado, a riverboat,

a floating pavilion and several barges.

5. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets consist of the following;

Fiscal Year Ended April 28, April 29,

(In thousands) 2002 2001
Goodwill ............... ... $ 330,136 $ 319534
Gaming ficenses ................ 68,056 72,230
Trademarks and player database . . . 5,628 5,628

Total goodwill and other
intangible assets ... ........ 403,820 397,392
Less accumulated amortization . . . . 39,226 39,226
Goodwill and other
intangble assets, net. ... . ... $ 364594  § 358166 |

h|

For the fiscal year ended April 28, 2002, goodwill and other intangible

assets increased by $11.4 million due to the recording of the final purchase
accounting adjustments for the Lady Luck-Las Vegas, the Isle-Boonville
and the Rhythm City-Davenport. Goodwill for Isle-Lake Charles
decreased by $5.0 million due to the elimination of the valuation

allowance related to the deferred tax assets. See Note 18.
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The following table sets forth the pro forma effect of adoption of Statements of Financial Accounting Standard No. 142, “Goodwill and Other

Intangible Assets™
Fiscal Year Ended April 28, April 29, April 30,
(In thousands, except per share data) 2002 2001 2000
Reported income before extraordinary loss. . ... $ 4314 $ 25144 $ 32055
Amortization expense, net of INCOME taXes. . ... vvv e — 9852 5,669
Adjusted income before extraordinary loss .. ... oo $ 4314 $ 34996 $ 37,724
Reported net INCome (I0S5) « ..o vr e $ (35 $ 25144 $ 31,071
Amortization expense, net Of taXES . ... v ie i - 9852 5,669
Adjusted net income (I0SS) . ... $ (35 $ 3499 $ 36740
REPORTED INCOME PER COMMON SHARE BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY LOSS:
BasiC. $ 0I5 $ 084 $ 122
Diluted. $ 0I5 $ 080 $ LIS
REPORTED NET INCOME PER COMMON SHARE:
BaSiC. $ - $ 084 $ 118
DIuted. . $ - $ 080 $ LI
ADJUSTED INCOME PER COMMON SHARE BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY LOSS:
BasiC, . $ 015 $ 117 $ 143
Diluted. . o $ 0I5 $ LI $ 135
ADJUSTED NET INCOME PER COMMON SHARE:
BaSIC. L $ - $ 117 $ 140
DlUted. o $ - $ LI $ 132

6. Restricted cash
Restricted cash consists of workers' compensation deposits in the

amount of $0.5 million and various other deposits totating $3.2 million.

7. Self-Insurance Liabilities

The Company’s employee-related health care benefits program,
workers' compensation insurance and general liability insurance are
self-funded up to a maximum amount per claim. Claims in excess of
this maximum are fully insured through a stop-loss insurance policy.
Accruals are based on claims filed and estimates of claims incurred but
not reported. For the fiscal years ended April 28, 2002 and April 29,
2001, the Company's liabilities for unpaid and incurred but not reported
claims totaled $17.7 million and $14.7 million, respectively, and are
included in “Accrued liabilities - payroll and related” for health care
benefits and workers’ compensation insurance and in “Accrued liabilities
— other” for general liability insurance in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets. While the total cost of claims incurred depends on future
developments, in management’s opinion, recorded reserves are adequate

to cover future claims’ payments.
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Fiscal Year Ended April 28, April 29,
(In thousands) 2002 2001
LONG-TERM DEBT CONSISTS OF THE FOLLOWING:

8.75% Senior Subordinated Notes (described below) . ... $ 390,000 $ 390000
9.00% Senior Subordinated Notes (described below) ... 200,000 -
Senior Secured Credit Facility (described below):

Variable rate term 10an. .. ..o 250,000 461,250

ROV . . 75,000 93,000
13% First Mortgage Notes, issued by Isle of Capri Black Hawk LL.C., due August 2004; non-recourse

to Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. (described below) ... ... - 75,000
Isle—Black Hawk Secured Credit Facility, non-recourse to Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. (described below):

Variable rate term loans . . ... o 77,900 -
Variable rate TIF Bonds due to City of Bettendorf {described below). ...t 5,929 6,493
12.5% note payable, due in monthly installments of $125,000, including interest, beginning

October 1997 through October 2005, .. . o 4,072 4999
8% note payable, due in monthly installments of $66,667, including interest, through July 2002....... .. ... 132 888
8% note payable, due in monthly installments of $1 1,365, including interest, through November 2015 ... .. 1,i24 168
O, 5,142 6,323

1,009,299 1,039,121
Less current MatUrities ..o 14,176 20,936
Long-term debt. .. oo $ 995,123 $ 1,018,185

8.75% Senior Subordinated Notes
On April 23, 1999, the Company issued $390.0 million of

8.75% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2009 (the “8.75% Senior
Subordinated Notes”). The 8.75% Senior Subordinated Notes are
guaranteed by all of the Companys significant subsidiaries, excluding
the subsidiaries that own and operate the Isle-Black Hawk. Interest on
the 8.75% Senior Subordinated Notes is payable semi-annually on
each April 15 and October 15 through maturity. The 8.75% Senior
Subordinated Notes are redeemable, in whole or in part, at the
Company’s option at any time on or after April 15, 2004 at the into other companies.

redemption prices (expressed as percentages of principal amount)

set forth below plus accrued and unpaid interest to the applicable

redemption date, if redeemed during the 12-month period beginning

on April 15 of the years indicated below:

interest and other transaction fees and costs.

Year Percentage
2004 104.375% 9% Senior Subordinated Notes
2005, 102.917%
2006, 101.458%
2007 and thereafter ................... ... ... 100.000%

The Company issued the 8.75% Senior Subordinated Notes
under an indenture between the Company, the subsidiary guarantors
and a trustee. The indenture, among other things, restricts the ability
of the Company and its restricted subsidiaries to borrow money, make
restricted payments, use assets as secutity in other transactions, enter
into transactions with affiliates, or pay dividends on or repurchase its
stock or its restricted subsidiaries” stock. The Company is also restricted
in its ability to issue and sell capital stock of its subsidiaries and in its

ability to sell assets in excess of specified amounts or merge with or

A substantial part of the proceeds from the 8.75% Senior
Subordinated Notes was used to prepay long-term debr, including
all of the $315.0 million of 12.5% Senior Secured Notes due 2003.
The proceeds were also used to pay prepayment premiums, accrued

On March 27, 2002, the Company issued $200.0 million of 9%
Senior Subordinated Notes due 2012 (the “9% Senior Subordinated
Notes”). The 9% Senior Subordinated Notes are guaranteed by all of
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the Company’s significant subsidiaries, excluding the subsidiaries that
own and operate the Isle-Black Hawk. The 9% Senior Subordinated
Notes are general unsecured obligations and rank junior to all existing
and future senior indebtedness, senior to any subordinated indebtedness
and equally with all of existing and future senior subordinated debt,
including the $390.0 million in aggregate principal amount of the
existing 8.75% Senior Subordinated Notes. Interest on the 9% Senior
Subordinated Notes is payable semi-annually on each March 15 and
September 15 through maturity. The 9% Senior Subordinated Notes
are redeemnable, in whole or in part, at the Company’s option at any
time on or after March 15, 2007 at the redemption prices (expressed as
percentages of principal amount) set forth below plus accrued and unpaid
interest to the applicable redemption date, if redeemed during the

12-month period beginning on March 15 of the years indicated below:

Year Percentage
2007, 104.500%
2008, . 103.000%
2009, 101.500%
2010 and thereafter. ................. . 100.000%

Additionally, the Company may redeem a portion of the Notes
with the proceeds of specified equity offerings.

The Company issued the 9% Senior Subordinated Notes under
an indenture between the Company, the subsidiary guarantors and a
trustee. The indenture, among other things, restricts the ability of
the Company and its restricted subsidiaries to borrow money, make
restricted payments, use assets as security in other transactions, enter
into transactions with affiliates, or pay dividends on or repurchase its
stock or its restricted subsidiaries’ stock. The Company is also restricted
in its ability to issue and sell capita! stock of its subsidiaries and in its
ability to sell assets in excess of specified amounts or merge with or

into other companies.

A substantial part of the proceeds from the 9% Senior Subordinated
Notes was used to prepay long-term debt, including $195.0 million
outstanding under the Amended and Restated Senior Credit Facility.
The proceeds were also used to pay accrued interest and other transaction
fees and costs.

Senior Secured Credit Facility
Senior Credit Facility
Simultaneously with the issuance of the 8.75% Senior Subordinated
Notes, the Company entered into a $175.0 million five-year credit
facility (the “Senior Credit Facility”) comprised of a $50.0 million
term loan and a' $125.0 million revolver. On March 2, 2000, the
Company amended and restated the Senior Credit Facility in connection

.
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with the acquisition of the Lady Luck-Las Vegas and BRDC, as well as,

to provide financing for the pending acquisitions of the Flamingo Hilton
Riverboat Casino in Kansas City, Missouri and of Davis Gaming
Boonville, Inc. The previous $175.0 million Senior Credit Facility was
expanded under the amended and restated agreement to a $600.0 million
facility ("Amended and Restated Senior Credit Faciligy”). On June 18,
2001, Isle of Capri exercised an option under its existing $600.0 million
Amended and Restated Credit Agreement to add $50.0 million of addi-
tional term loans under the same terms, conditions and covenants to bring

the total Amended and Restated Senior Credit Facility to $650.0 million.

Amended and Restated Senior Credit Facility

The $650.0 million Amended and Restated Senior Credit Facility
was comprised of a $125.0 million revolving credit facility, a
$100.0 million Tranche A term loan maturing on March 2, 2005,
a $226.7 million Tranche B term loan maturing on March 2, 2006,
and a $198.3 million Tranche C term loan maturing on March 2,
2007. On April 26, 2002, the Company amended the existing
$650.0 million Amended and Restated Senior Credit Facility with
a $500.0 million Senior Secured Credit Facility (the “Senior Secured
Credit Facility”).

Senior Secured Credit Facility
The Senior Secured Credit Facility provides for a $250.0 million
revolving credit facility maturing on April 25, 2007 and 2 $250.0
million term loan facility maturing on April 25, 2008. The proceeds
were used to refinance $336.8 million of the existing Amended and
Restated Senior Credit Facility with the remainder being available for

general corporate purposes.

At the Company’s option, the revolving credit facility may bear
interest at (1) the higher of 0.05% in excess of the federal funds
effective rate or the rate that the bank group announces from time
to time as its prime lending rate plus an applicable margin of up to
1.75%, or {2) a rate tied to a LIBOR rate plus an applicable margin of
up to 2.75%. The term loan may bear interest at the Company’s option
at (1) the higher of 0.05% in excess of the federal funds effective rate or
the rate that the bank group announces from time to time as its prime
lending rate plus an applicable margin of up to 1.5% or (2) a rate tied
to a LIBOR rate plus an applicable margin of up 10 2.5%.

The Senior Secured Senior Credit Facility provides for certain
covenants, including those of a financial nature. The Amended and
Restated Senior Credit Facility is secured by liens on substantially all of
the Company’s assets and guaranteed by all of its significant restricted
subsidiaries, excluding Casino America of Colorado, Inc., the Isle-Black

Hawk and their subsidiaries.
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The weighted-average effective interest rate of total debt outstanding
under the Senior Secured Credit Facility at April 28, 2002 was 6.27%.

13% First Mortgage Notes

On August 20, 1997, the Isle-Black Hawk issued $75.0 million of

13% First Mortgage Notes (“First Mortgage Notes”) with contingent
interest, due August 31, 2004, that was non-recourse debt to the Isle
of Capri Casinos. Interest on the First Mortgage Notes was payable
semi-annually on February 28 and August 31 of each year, commencing
February 28, 1998. Additionally, contingent interest was payable on
the First Mortgage Notes on each interest payment date in an aggregate
principal amount of 5% of the Consolidated Cash Flow (as defined in
the Indenture governing the First Mortgage Notes). Every six months
the Isle-Black Hawk had been required to pay contingent interest in

accordance with the Indenture.

The amount of contingent interest expense totaled $1.0 million in

fiscal 2002, $1.5 million in fiscal 2001 and $1.1 million in fiscal 2000.
On December 18, 2001, the Isle-Black Hawk redeemed all of its

outstanding 13% First Mortgage Notes in the principal amount of
$75.0 million. The redemprion price of the First Mortgage Notes was
106.5% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest to
the date of redemption, equaling a redemption price of $1,063 for
each $1,000 principal amount of Notes, plus accrued and unpaid

interest. Isle of Capri recorded a $2.4 million extraordinary loss, net of

taxes of $1.4 million during the fiscal year ended April 28, 2002, relating
to the extinguishment of the First Mortgage Notes resulting from the
payment of early payment premiums and the write-off of previously

recorded debr acquisition costs.

Isle-Black Hawk Secured Credit Facility

On November 16, 2001, the Isle-Black Hawk entered into a
$90.0 million secured credit facility {the “Secured Credit Facility”),
that is non-recourse debt to the Isle of Capri, primarily for the
purpose of funding the redemption of the 13% First Mortgage Notes.
The Secured Credit Facility provides for a $10.0 million revolving
credit facility, a $40.0 million Tranche A term loan maturing on
November 16, 2005 and a $40.0 million Tranche B term loan
maturing on November 16, 2006.

The Isle-Black Hawk is required to make quarterly principal
payments on the term loan portions of the Secured Credit Facility that
commenced in March 2002. Such payments on the Tranche A term
loan initally will be $2.0 million per quarter with scheduled increases t
$2.5 million per quarter commencing March 2003 and to $3.0 million
per quarter commencing March 2003. Such payments on the Tranche B

term loan initially will be $0.1 million per quarter with a scheduled

increase to $9.6 million per quarter commencing March 2006.

At the Isle-Black Hawk's option, the revolving credit facility and
the Tranche A term loan may bear interest at (1) the higher of 0.05%
in excess of the federal funds effective rate or the rate thar the bank
group announces from time to time as its prime lending rate plus an
applicable margin of up to 2.50%, or (2) a rate ted to a LIBOR rate
plus an applicable margin of up to 3.50%. At the Isle-Black Hawks
option, the Tranche B term loan may bear interest at (1) the higher of
0.05% in excess of the federal funds effective rate or the rate that the
bank group announces from time to time as its prime lending rate plus
an applicable margin of up to 3.00%, or (2) a rate tied to a LIBOR
rate plus an applicable margin of up to 4.00%.

The Secured Credit Facility provides for certain covenants, including
those of a financial nature. The Isle-Black Hawk was in compliance
with these covenants as of April 28, 2002. The Secured Credit Facility

is secured by liens on the Isle-Black Hawk’s assets.

The weighted-average effective interest rate of total debt outstanding
under the Secured Credit Facility at April 28, 2002 was 6.82%.

Interest Rate Swaps

The Company entered into three interest rate swap agreements in
the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001 and four interest rate swap agreements
in fiscal 2002 that effectively convert portions of the floating rate term
loans to a fixed rate, thus reducing the impact of interest rate changes
on future interest expense. The notional value of the swaps, which were
designated as cash flow hedges, was $240.0 million, or 73.2% of the Iste
of Capti’s variable rate term loans as of April 28, 2002. The interest rate
swaps terminate as follows: $50.0 million in fiscal 2003, $150.0 million
in fiscal 2004 and $40.0 million in fiscal 2003.

For the fiscal year ended April 28, 2002, other comprehensive
loss included $4.1 million for changes in the fair value of derivative
instruments for cash flow hedges. The fair value of the estimated interest
differential between the applicable future variable rates and the interest
rate swap contracts, expressed in present value terms totals $6.4 million,
of which $1.2 million is recorded in other accrued current liabilities
and $5.2 million is recorded in other accrued long-term liabilities in
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. There was no effect on

income related to hedge ineffectiveness.

At April 28, 2002, the Company does not expect to reclassify any
net gains (losses) on derivative instruments from accumulated other
comprehensive income to earnings during the next twelve months due

to the payment of variable interest associated with the floating rate debr.
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Variable Rate TIF Bonds

As part of the City of Bettendorf Development Agreement dated
June 17, 1997, the Ciry issued $9.5 million in tax incremental financing
bonds (“TIF Bonds™), $7.5 million of which were used by the Isle-Bettendorf
to construct an overpass, parking garage, related site improvements and pay
for disruption damages caused by construction of the overpass. To enable
financing of the City’s obligations, the Isle-Bettendorf will pay incremental
property taxes on the developed property assessed at a valuation of not less
than $32.0 million until the TIF Bonds mature. Additionally, the TIF Bonds
will also be repaid from the incremental taxes on the developed property
within the defined “TIF District” which includes the Isle-Bettendorf and over
100 other tax-paying entities. As the TIF District will repay the TIF Bonds,
the Isle-Bettendorf may noc be required to fully repay the $7.5 million.
In the event that the taxes generated by the project and other qualifying
developments in the redevelopment district do not fund the repayment of
the total TIF Bonds prior to their scheduled maturity, the Isle-Bettendorf
will pay the City $0.25 per person for each person entering the boat until

the remaining balance has been repaid.

Other

The Isle of Capri has $264.0 million in bank lines of credit including the
Senior Secured Credit Facility and the Secured Credit Facility. As of April 28,
2002, Isle of Capri had $75.0 million outstanding under these lines of credit.

The Isle-Black Hawk obtained a letter of credit, as a requirement
to guarantee the City of Black Hawk (“the City of Black Hawk”)
improvements according to the subdivision improvement agreement with
the City of Black Hawk. The lecter of credit, totaling $0.4 million and
insured by $0.2 million of restricted cash, could be drawn upon by the
City of Black Hawk for repair on the public improvements during the
one-year warranty period. During the warranty period that ended in
February 2002, the City of Black Hawk did not draw on the Isle-Black

Hawk for repairs and the restricted cash was released in February 2002.

At April 28, 2002, the Isle of Capri was in compliance with all debt

covenants.

The aggregate principal payments due on total long-term debt over

the next five fiscal years and thereafter are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending
(In thousands)

2003, $ 14176
2004, 15,714
2005, . 15911
2006, . 22,927
2007, e 32,611
Thereafter . ... ... ... 907,960

$ 1,009,299

9, Commitments

The Company leases approximately 16.25 acres of land in Calcasieu
Parish, Louisiana for use in connection with the Isle-Lake Charles. The
initial term of this lease expires in March 2005 and we have the option to
renew it for sixteen additional terms of five years each. Rent under the
Isle-Lake Charles lease is currencly $1.5 million per year and is subject to

increases based on the Consumer Price Index.

The Company has an agreement with the Biloxi Port Commission
that provides the Company with certain docking rights. This agreement
expires in July 2004, with seven renewal options of five years each. Annual
rentals are the greater of $500,000 or 1% of gross gaming revenue, as
defined. Annual rent during each renewal term is adjusted for increases in

the Consumer Price Index, limited to 6% for each renewal period.

In addition, the Company leases certain land, buildings, and other
improvements from the City of Biloxi under a lease and concession agreement.
This agreement expires in July 2004, with options to renew for six additional
terms of five years each. Annual rent is $530,000 plus 3% of gross gaming
revenue, as defined, in excess of $25.0 million. Annual rent during each
renewal term is adjusted for increases in the Consumer Price Index, limited

to 6% for each renewal period.

In April 1994, the Company entered an Addendum to the lease
with the City of Biloxi, which requires the Company to pay 4% of gross
non-gaming revenues received as defined, net of sales tax, comps and
discounts. Additional rent wilt be due to the City of Biloxi for the amount
of any increase from and after January 1, 2016 in the rent due to the State
Institutions of Higher Learning under a lease between the City of Biloxi
and the State Institutions of Higher Learning (the “THL Lease”) and for
any increases in certain tidelands leases between the City of Biloxi and the

State of Mississippi.

In April 1994, in connection with the construction of a hotel,
the Company entered into a lease for additional land. The Company first
acquired the leasehold interest of Sea Harvest, Inc., the original lessee,
for consideration of $8,000 per month for a period of ten years. The
Company’s lease is with the City of Biloxi, Mississippi, for an initial term
of 25 years, with options to renew for six additional terms of 10 years each
and a final option period with a termination date commensurate with the
termination date of the ITHL Lease, but in no evenc later than December 31,
2085. Annual rent (which includes payments to be made pursuant to
the purchase of a related leasehold interest) is $444,400, plus 4% of gross
non-gaming revenue, as defined. The annual rent is adjusted after each
five-year period based on increases in the Consumer Price Index, limited
to a 10% increase in any five-year period. The annual rent will increase 10

years after the commencement of payments pursuant to a termination of
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lease and settlement agreement, to an amount equal o the sum of annual
rent as if it had been $500,000 annually plus adjustments thereto based on

the Consumer Price Index.

The Company leases approximately 1,000 acres of land in Cozhoma
County, Mississippi and utilizes approximately 50 acres in connection with
the operations of the Isle-Lula. Unless terminated by the Company at an
carlier dare, the lease expires in 2033. Rent under the lease is currently
5.5% of gross gaming revenue as established by the Mississippi Gaming
Commission, as well as $3,333 per month for the Rhythm & Blues hotel.

Through numerous lease agreements, the Company leases
approximately 64 acres of land in Natchez, Mississippi, which is used in
connection with the operation of the Isle-Natchez. Unless terminated by
the Company at an earlier date, the lease expiration dates vary from 2002-
2037. Rents under the leases currently total approximately $60,000 per
month. The Company also leases approximately 7.5 acres of land, which

is utilized for parking at the facility.

In March 1999, the Company entered into a lease for land in Tunica
County, Mississippi for use in connection with the Isle-Tunica. The initial
lease term is five years with the option to renew the lease for seven additional
terms of five years. Base rent for each lease year equals the greater of 2% of
gross gaming revenue or $800,000. Once gross gaming revenue exceeds
$40.0 million during any lease year, the base rent in the following months
of such year shall be increased by an amount equal to 2% of such excess.
The landlord is entitled to receive additional rent based on excess available

cash, as defined in the lease.

The Company entered into a lease agreement with the City of
Boonville (“the City of Boonville”). Under the terms of agreement the
Company leases the site for a period of 99 years. The Company was
required to pay $1.7 million to the City of Boonville as lump sum rent
payment during construction of the casino. There is no rent due after

casino opening date.

Dhuring the one year period after the casino opening date, after the
City of Boonville has received $0.8 million in admission fees. The
Company will receive a dollar for dollar rebate, up to $0.2 million, of
the lump sum rent for every additional dollar which the City of Boonville
receives from the admission fees. As of April 28, 2002, the City of

Boonville has received $1.0 million in admission fees.

Under terms of the agreement, the Company is required to make
quartetly payments of 3.5% of gross revenues to a construction escrow
account. The maximum amount required to be paid into the account is
$1.0 million. Within two years of the casino opening date, the Company

is required to commence construction of an amphitheater or a community
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project, funded by the escrow account. If the Company does not commence
construction, the amount in the escrow account reverts to the City of
Boonville. As of April 28, 2002, the Company had paid $0.7 miltion into

the escrow account.

The Company leases approximately 28 acres from the Kansas City Port
Authority in connection with the operation of the Isle-Kansas City. The
term of the lease is 5 years and [sle of Capri has the option to renew the
lease for 8 additional terms of 5 years each. Rent under the lease is
currently $3.0 million per year, subject to the higher of $3.0 million

(minimum rent) per year, or 3.25% of gross revenues, less complimentaries.

The Company leases riverfront land from the City of Marquette,
Towa, under a lease agreement. This agreement expires in December 2019.
Annual rent is $180,000 payable in equal monthly instaliments due on the
first of each month. In addition to the base rent, the Company must also
pay the following amounts: (1) $0.50 per customer per day due the 15th
day following each month and (2) 2.5% of net gambling receipts, as
defined, from $20.0 million to $40.0 million, plus 5% of net gambling
receipts, as defined, from $40.0 million to $60.0 million, plus 7% of net

gambling receipts, as defined, in excess of $60.0 million, due annually.

In February 1995, in conjunction with its planned Cripple Creek,
Colorado development, the Company entered into a land lease. The lease
has an initial term of 25 years, with options to renew for seven additional
terms of 10 years cach. The base rent is $250,000 per year increased by
$10,000 each year until the annual rent is $300,000. After seven years,
and every two years thereafter, the annual rent is adjusted based on
increases in the Consumer Price Index, limited to a 4% increase in any

two-year petiod.

Future minimum payments under capital leases and noncancelable

operating leases with initial terms of one year or more consisted of che

following at April 28, 2002:

Capital Operating

{In thousands) Leases Leases
2003 $ 403 $ 13799
2004 384 I1,287
2005, ... 332 10,857
20060 318 10,409
2007 ..o 327 9,240
Thereafter. .................... 4,593 505,555
Total minimum lease payments ... $ 6,357 $ 561,147
Amounts representing interest . ... (3,748)
Present value of net minimum

lease payments .............. $ 2,609
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All future operating minimum lease payments include long-term used for parking and warehouse space by the Isle-Bettendorf. The initial
land lease payments which have various renewal options varying term of the lease expires 60 days after written notice is given to either
berween 5 to 10 years. The Company expects that the Company’s party, and rent under the lease is currently $23,360 per month.

properties will continue in operation and these lease.s will be renewed The Company reimburses Aler Trading Corporation, a company
for the next 80 to 90 years. Rent expense for operating leases was
approximately $39.8 million in fiscal 2002, $36.6 million in fiscal
2001 and $19.6 million in fiscal 2000. Such amounts include contingent
rentals of $12.1 million in fiscal 2002, $8.5 million in fiscal 2001 and

$3.0 million in fiscal 2000,

owned by Robert S. Goldstein, Jeffrey D. Goldstein and other members
of the Goldstein family, for annual lease payments of approximately
$99,000 with respect to property leased by Alter Trading Corporation.
The land was leased at the Company’s request in order to secure a site
for possible casino operations.

10, Related Party T t
elated Varty lransactions 11. Common Stock

The Company leases approximately eight acres of land on a month- Earnings (Loss) per Share of Common Stock
to-month basis from an entity owned by members of Bernard Goldstein's The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted
family, including Robert S. Goldstein and Jeffrey D. Goldstein, which is earnings (loss) per share:
Fiscal Year Ended April 28, April 29, April 30,
(In thousands, except per share data) 2002 2001 2000
NUMERATOR:
Income before extraordinary 10SS ... ..o $ 4314 $ 25,144 $ 32,055
Extraordinary loss,net..........oo i (4.349) - (984)
Netincome {I0SS). . oo v (35) 25,144 31071
Numerator for basic earnings {loss) per share—income (loss) available to .
common stockholders. ... (35) 25,144 31071

Effect of diluted SeCUrtIES. .o\ ov vt e — — —

Numerator for diluted earnings (loss) per share—income (foss) available to

common stockholders after assumed Conversions. . ..o $ (35) $ 25,144 $ 31071
DENOMINATOR:
Denominator for basic earnings (loss) per share—weighted-average shares. ... .. 28,162 25,894 26,327
Effect of dilutive securities, employee stock options, warrants and
nonvested restricted stOck. ... 1,603 1,619 1,598
Dilutive potential common shares. ... 1,603 1,619 1,598
Denominator for diluted earnings (loss) per share—adjusted weighted-average
shares and assumed CONVErSIONS . . ..t o e e 29,765 31,513 27925
Basic earnings (loss) per share
Income before extraordinary 10ss . ... .o $ Q.15 § 084 $ 122
Extraordinary loss,net .. ..o 0.15) - (0.04)
N INCOME. L o _ $ - $ 084 $ 1.18
Diluted earnings (loss) per share
Income before extraordinary loss .. ... $ 0I5 $ 080 $ 15
Extraordinary [0ss, net . ... (0.15) - (0.04)

e INCOME, L oot e e $ - $ 080 $ Il




Stock-based Compensation - Stock Option Plans
Under the Company’s 1992, 1993 and 2000 Stock Option Plans,
as amended, a maximum of 1,038,750, 4,650,000 and 2,542,566

options, respectively, may be granted to directors, officers and employees.

The plans provide for the issuance of incentive stock options and
nonqualified options which have a maximum term of 10 years and
are, generally, exercisable in yearly inscallmencs ranging from 20%

to 25%, commencing one year after the date of grant.

Stock options outstanding are as follows:

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Average
2002 Exercise 2001 Exercise 2000 Exercise

QOptions  Price  Options  Price  Options  Price

Qutstanding
options at
beginning of

fiscal year... 4,166,184 $6.72 3920498 $529 3959487 $ 448

Options
granted. ... 1,345,384 715

Options
exercised .. (1,202,357)  5.05

Options

611250 1547

canceled. .. (364360) 734 (119.190) 887 (176200) 449

Outstanding
options at
end of

fiscal year .. 3,944,851 $7.32 4166184 $672 3920498 $529

Weighted-
average fair
value of
options
granted....  $4.2I $11.62 $6.78

518200 1025

(246374) 465 (38098%) 411

The following table summarizes information about stock options
outstanding at April 28, 2002:

Options Qutstanding  Options Exercisable

Weighted-
Average  Weighted- Weighted-
Ranges of Remaining  Average Average
Exercise Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise
Prices  Outstanding  Life Price  Exercisable  Price
$ 85-$570 1443442 585yrs $325 1023864 $327
588- 1125 1804025 833ys. 743 349722 885
1156-2105 697384  628yrs. 1547 295184 1547

$ 89-32105 3944851 T06yrs. $732 1668269 $640

L
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Pro forma information regarding net income and earnings per
share is required by Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No.
123, “Accounting for Stock-based Compensation” (“SFAS 1237).
Had compensation costs for the Company’s three stock option plans
been determined based on the fair value at the grant dates for awards
in fiscal years 2002, 2001 and 2000 consistent with the provisions of
SEAS 123, the Company’s net earnings and earnings per share would

have been reduced to the pro forma amounts disclosed below:

Fiscal Year Ended
(In thousands, April 28,  Aprit 29, April 30,
except per share data) 2002 2001 2000
NET INCOME (LOSS)
As reported .. .. .. $ (35 $25144  $3107
Proforma........ $(3,405 $23641  $29055
EARNINGS (LOSS) PER
COMMON SHARE
Basic
Asreported. ... .. $ - $ 08 % 1.8
Proforma........ $012) $ 079 $ LIO
Diluted
As reported.. ..., $ - $ 08 % LI
Pro forma........ $@Iy $ 075 % 104

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date
of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the

following assumptions:

Risk-Free Original Expected  Expected

FiscalYear  Interest Rate  Expected Life  Vollity — Dividends
2002 449% 5 years 700% None
2001 506% 5 years 70.0% None
2000 5.80% 5 years 700% None

The pro forma effect on net income (loss) for fiscal 2002, 2001
and 2000 is not representative of the pro forma effect on net income
for future years because it does not rake into account pro forma
compensation expense related to grants made prior to fiscal 1996 or

the potential for issuance of additional stock options in futute years.

Stock-based Compensation — Deferred Bonus Plan

In fiscal 2001, the Company’s stockholders approved the
Deferred Bonus Plan. The Plan provides for the issuance of nonvested

stock to eligible officers and employees who agree to receive 2 deferred
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bonus in the form of nonvested stock. The vesting of the stock is
dependent upon continued service to the Company for a period of
five years. At April 28, 2002, the nonvested stock issued in connection
with the Plan totaled 355,898 shares, of which 40,277 shares were
issued during fiscal year ended April 28, 2002, ar $8.92, the weighted-
average fair value of the nonvested stock at the grant date. For the
fiscal year ended April 28, 2002, the Company recorded an unearned
compensation contra account in consolidated stockholders” equity
equal to the fair value of the nonvested award and recorded compensation
expense for the portion of unearned compensation that had been
earned through April 28, 2002. Compensation expense related to
stock-based compensation totaled $376,000 in fiscal 2002, $900,000
in fiscal 2001, and 80 in fiscal 2000.

Stock Repurchase

In November 2000, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a
stock repurchase program allowing for the purchase of up to 1.5 million
shares of the Company’s outstanding common stock. In January 2001,
the Board of Directors approved an additional 1.5 million shares
under the stock repurchase program. In October 2001, the Board of
Directors resolved that the Company buy up to $25.0 million of stock
in the Corporation even if the total number of shares to be purchased
exceeds the 3.0 million shares previously authorized by the board. As
of April 28, 2002, a total of 3.0 million shares of common stock had
been repurchased at a total cost of $24.7 million.

Stockholder Rights Plan

In February 1997, the Company adopted a Stockholder Rights
Plan. The Plan is designed to preserve the long-term value of the
shareholders’ investment in the Company. Under the Plan, each
shareholder will receive a distribution of one Right for each share of
the Company's outstanding common stock. The Righes were distributed
to shareholders of record on March 3, 1997 and will expire ten years
thereafter. Each right entitles the holder to purchase one one-thousandth
(1/1,000) of a share of a new series of pasticipating preferred stock at
an initial exercise price of $12.50. Initially the rights are represented
by the Company’s common stock certificates and are not exercisable.
The rights become exercisable shortly after a person or group acquires
beneficial ownership of 15% or more of the Company or publicly
announces its intention to commence a tender or exchange offer that
would result in the 15% beneficial ownership level. Under certain
circumstances involving a buyer’s acquisition of a 15% position in the
Company, all Rights holders except the buyer will be entided to purchase
common stock at half price. If the Company is acquired through a
merger, after such an acquisition, all Rights holders except the buyer
will be entitled to purchase stock in the buyer at half price. The

Company may redeem the Rights at one cent each at any time before
a buyer acquires 15% of the Company’s stock.

12. Employee Benefit Plans
401(k) Plan

The Company has a 401(k) plan substantially covering all of its
employees. The Company's contribution expense related to the 401(k)
plan was approximately $2.0 million in fiscal 2002, $1.8 million in
fiscal 2001 and $0.9 million in fiscal 2000. The Company’s contribution
is based on a percentage of employee contributions and may include
an additional discretionary amount. The 401(k) plan allows employees
to invest no more than 5% of their contribution in the Company'’s

common stock.

Insurance Plan

The Company has a qualified employee insurance plan covering
all employees who work an average of 32 hours or more per week on a
regular basis. The plan, which is self-funded by the Company with respect
to claims below a certain maximum amount, requires contributions from
eligible employees and their dependents. The Company’s contribution
expense for the plan was approximately $40.3 million in fiscal 2002,
$28.8 million in fiscal 2001 and $14.5 million in fiscal 2000.

13. Business Interruption Insurance Recoveries

During the fiscal year ended April 28, 2002, the Isle of Capri
recorded $4.2 million in business interruption insurance proceeds. These
amounts are recorded in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations in the line item “Marketing and Administrative Operating
Expenses.” All of the business interruption insurance proceeds relate
to the flooding of the Mississippi River that closed the Isle-Marquette
from April 18, 2001 through May 2, 2001 and the Rhythm City-
Davenport from April 18, 2001 through May 20, 2001.

14. Accrued Litigation Settlement

During the fiscal year ended April 28, 2002, Isle of Capri recorded
a $2.6 million charge for an accrued litigation settlement, net of

insurance proceeds, related to the Isle-Lake Charles.

15. Valuation Charge

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, under provision of SFAS
121, the Company determined chat it would not be able to recover the
net book value of the Isle-Tunica or the Lady Luck-Las Vegas based
on current real estate and market conditions in Tunica, Mississippi
and recent offers to purchase the properties. As such, the Company
recorded in the line item “Valuation Charge” in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations an impairment write-down of

$59.2 million, representing the difference between the Isle-Tunica's
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and the Lady Luck-Las Vegas' net book values of A reconciliation of income tax provision (benefit) to the statutory
$80.7 million and their estimated fair values less estimated costs to corporate federal tax rate of 35% s as follows:
sell. Fair values were based on the most recent offer to purchase the Fiscal Year Ended April 28, April 29, April 30,
assets. [n addition, as the Company has committed to a disposal plan (In thousands) 2002 2001 2000

in the fourth quarter of 2002 and begun aggressively seeking a buyer

of the Isle-Tunica and the Lady Luck-Las Vegas, the Company reclassified Statutory tax
provision (beneft). . $ 364 316033 $19569

the net book value of these properties to “Property held for sale” in the

accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of April 28, 2002. EFFECTS OF:
In addition, the Company recorded a valuadon allowance totaling Statetaxes.... ... 1,267 890 2021
$2.2 million in fiscal 2002 and $1.0 million in fiscal 2001 to reflect Goodwill............ - 3355 556
the write-down of marine assets held for sale. Fines and penatties. .. 439 120 307

Employment

16. Preopening Expenses tax credits. .. ... (1,164) (148) 201
Preopening expenses of $3.9 million, $0.2 million and $3.4 million Other. .. .. .. ... |75 254 185
represent salaries, benefits, training, marketing and other costs incurred ‘ $ 1081  $20504  $2483%

in connection with the opening of the Isle-Boonville on December 6,
2001, the Isle Boonville on December 6, 2001 the Isle-Tunica on

Significant components of the Company’s net deferred income tax
July 26, 1999, respectively.

liabilities are as follows:

17. Other Charges Fiscal Year Ended April 28,  April 29,
During fiscal 2001, other charges of $8.2 million included a (In thousands) 2002 2001
$3.0 million loss due to the write-off of abandoned expansion projects DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES:
assets at the Isle-Biloxi, a $2.9 million loss due to the termination of Property and equipmert ... ... $ 89,682 $ 64750
the joint venture as a result of Bankruptey Court filings by Commodore Other. (6,647) 2427
Holdings, Ltd., the operator of the Enchanted Capri and owner of the Total deferred tax labilties ... 83.035 57177
remaining 50% interest in the joint venture, a $1.4 million buyout of
the Crowne Plaza license at the Isle-Biloxi, and 2 $0.9 million loss relating DEFERRED TAX ASSETS:
to the write-off of the theater production contracts at the Isle-Tunica. Dividends 258 758
18. Income Taxes Write-down of assets
Income tax provision (benefit) consists of the following: held for sale. ... 40,838 21,202
Fiscal Year Ended April28,  April29,  April 30 Fledgng Tansactions ... 2364 R
(In thousands) 2002 000 2000 AU &pEnses. .. ... 12,771 3233
Charttable contribution carryover. . 116 366
CURRENT: Alternative minimum tax credit . . 3,787 2483
Federal... ........ $(13,176) $10430 $ 689 Employment tax credits ... .. ... 1,163 513
State.............. 1,966 506 538 Net operating losses........... 30,463 34,305
(11,210 10936 7429 Other. ..o 4,907 6,564
Total deferred tax assets........... 96,667 70,924
DEFERRED: Valuation aliowance on deferred
Federal............ 12,307 8,705 15928 faxassets... o - (4,773)
State.............. (16) 863 1,482 Net deferred tax assets. .......... 96,667 66,151
12,291 9,568 17410 Net deferred tax (asset)/liability . ... $ (13,632) $ 1,026
1,08l 20,504 24,839
Extraordinary Loss . . .. (2,672) - (634)
$ 3753  §$20504 $ 25473
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At April 28, 2002, the valuation allowance on the deferred tax
assets was no longer required. Goodwill related to the Isle-Lake
Charles acquisition was reduced to reflect the elimination of the

valuation allowance.

At April 28, 2002, the Company had alternative minimum tax
credits that can be carried forward indefinitely to reduce future regular
tax liabilities. Additionally, as of April 28, 2002, the Company had
federal net operating loss carryforwards of $87.0 million for income
tax purposes, with expiration dates from 2008 to 2019. The net operating
losses are subject to limitation under the income tax regulations,

which may limit the amount ultimately utilized.

The Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) has completed examinations
of our federal consolidated income tax returns for fiscal years ended
April 1994-April 1997 and currently is examining the returns for
fiscal years ended April 1998-April 2000. The IRS has proposed
adjustments in connection with the examinations for the April 1994-
April 1998 returns but a final determination has not been made. We
believe that the Company's positions comply with applicable tax law
and intend to defend the Company’s positions vigorously. The ultimate
disposition of these matters could require the Company to make additional
payments to the IRS. Nonetheless, we believe that the Company has
adequarely provided for any foreseeable payments related to these
matters and consequently do not anticipate any material earnings

impact from the ultimate resolution of these matters.

19. Extraordinary Loss
The Company incurred pre-tax extraordinary losses totaling

$7.0 million in fiscal 2002 and $1.6 million in fiscal 2000. For
fiscal 2002 these losses related to the extinguishment of debt,
in connection with the refinancing of the Isle-Black Hawk’s
$75.0 million 13% First Mortgage Notes on December 18, 2001,
and the refinancing of the Isle of Capri's Amended and Restated
Credit Facility on March 27, 2002. These losses included early
payment premiums, as well as the write-off of debt acquisition costs.
For fiscal 2000, this loss was associated with the extinguishment of debt
primarily related to debt associated with the acquisition of the Lady
Luck on March 2, 2000. This loss included the write-off of debt
acquisition costs. The income tax benefit from the extraordinary losses
was approximately $2.7 million in fiscal 2002 and $0.6 million in
fiscal 2000.

e e T e g et

20, Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the
fair value of each class of financial instruments for which it is practicable

to estimate that value:

Cash and cash equivalents - The carrying amounts approximate

fair value because of the short maturity of these instruments.

Short-term investments - The carrying amounts approximate

fair value because of the short maturity of these instruments.

Restricted cash - The carrying amounts approximate fair value

because of the short maturity of these instruments.

Long-term debt - The fair value of the Company’s long-term
debt is estimared based on the quoted market price of the
underlying debt issue or, when a quoted market price is not
available, the discounted cash flow of future payments utilizing
current rates available to the Company for debt of similar
remaining maturities. Debt obligations with a short remaining

maturity are valued at the carrying amount.

The estimated carrying amounts and fair values of the Company’s

financial instruments are as follows:

April 28,2002 April 29,2001
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
(In thousands) Amount Value  Amount Value
FINANCIAL ASSETS:

Cash and cash

equivalents. ....... $76597  $76597 376659  $76659
Restricted cash. .. ... 3,677 3,677 4,300 4300
FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES:
8.75% Senior

Subordinated Notes, . $390,000  $401,700  $390000  $354.900
9.00% Senior

Subordinated Notes. . 200,000 206,000 - -
First Mortgage Notes,

Isle-Black Hawk . ... - - 75,000 79,500
Senior Secured

Credit Facility. .. ... 325,000 326,625 554250 554,250
Other long-term

debt.. .o 94,299 94,299 19,871 1987




21. Contingencies
One of our subsidiaries has been named, along with numerous

manufacturers, distributors and gaming operators, including many of
the country’s largest gaming operators, in a consolidated class-action
lawsuit pending in Las Vegas, Nevada. These gaming industry defendants
are alleged to have violated the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt
Organizations Act by engaging in a course of fraudulent and misleading
conducrt intended to induce people to play their gaming machines based
upon a false belief concerning how those gaming machines actually
operate and the extent to which there is actually an opportunity to win
on any given play. The suit seeks unspecified compensatory and punitive
damages. A motion for certification of the class is currently pending
before the court and no discovery as to the merits of the alleged claims
has begun. At this time, the Company is unable to determine what
effect, if any, the suit would have on our financial position or results of
operations. However, the gaming industry defendants are committed to

defend vigorously all claims asserted in the consolidated action.

In August 1997, a lawsuit was filed which secks to nullify a contract
to which Louisiana Riverboat Gaming Partnership is a party. Pursuant
to the contract, Louisiana Riverboat Gaming Partnership pays a fixed
amount plus a percentage of revenue to various local governmental
entities, including the City of Bossier and the Bossier Parish School
Board, in lieu of payment of a per-passenger boarding fee. Summary
judgment in favor of Louisiana Riverboat Gaming Partnership was
granted on June 4, 1998. That judgment was not appealed and is now
final. On June 11, 1998, a similar suit was filed and the lower court
rendered judgment in our favor on September 16, 1999. The case was
reversed on appeal and remanded to the lower court for further
proceedings. However, on October 8, 2001 the trial court dismissed
the case again, this time on the basis that the plaintiffs lacked standing.
The plaintiffs have amended the petition and continue to pursue this
matter. The Company intends to vigorously defend this suit. In addition,
a similar action was recently filed against the City of Bossier City,
challenging the validity of its contracts with Louisiana Riverboat
Gaming Partnership and other casinos. Exceptions have been filed
requiring joinder of all interested parties, including Louisiana Riverboat
Gaming Partnership. The Company believes the claims are without
merit and intends to continue to vigorously defend this suit along

with the other interested parties.

Lady Luck and several joint venture partners are defendants in a
lawsuit brought by the country of Greece and its Minister of Tourism
before the Greek Multi-Member Court of First Instance. The action alleges
that the defendants failed to make specified payments in connection with
the gaming license bid process for Patras, Greece. The payment the
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Company is alleged to have been required to make aggregates
approximately 2.1 billion drachma (which was approximately

$5.6 million as of April 28, 2002, based on published exchange rates).
Although it is difficult to determine the damages being sought from
the lawsuit, the action may seck damages up to that aggregate amount
plus interest from the date of the alleged breach. The court granted
summary judgment in our favor and dismissed the lawsuit, but the
Ministry of Tourism has appealed the matter and the appeal was heard
in April 2002. There has been no announcement as to whether there
has been a decision on the appeal. Accordingly, the outcome s still in
doubt and cannot be predicted with any degree of certainty. The
Company believes the claims against us to be without merit and the
Company intends to continue vigorously defending the claims asserted

in this action.

The Company is engaged in various other litigation matters and
has a number of unresolved claims. Although the ultimate liability
of this litigation and these claims cannot be determined at this time,
we believe that they will not have a material adverse effect on our

consolidated financial position or results of operations.

The Company is subject to certain federal, state and local
environmental protection, health and safety laws, regulations and
ordinances that apply to businesses generally, and is subject to cleanup
requirements at certain of its facilities as a result thereof. The
Company has not made, and does not anticipate making, material
expenditures or incurring delays with respect to environmental
remediation or protection. However, in part because the Company’s
present and future development sites have, in some cases, been used as
manufacturing facilities or other facilities that generate materials that
are required to be remediated under environmental laws and regulations,
there can be no guarantee that additional pre-existing conditions will
not be discovered and that the Company will not experience material

liabilities or delays.

22. Consolidating Condensed Financial Information
Certain of the Company’s subsidiaries have fully and

unconditionally guaranteed the payment of all obligations under
the Company’s $390.0 million 8.75% Senior Subordinated Notes
due 2009, $200.0 million 9% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2012
and $500.0 million Senior Secured Credit Facility. The following
table presents the consolidating condensed financial information of
Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc., as the parent company, its guarantor
subsidiaries and its non-guarantor subsidiaries as of April 28, 2002,
April 29, 2001 and April 30, 2000.
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CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED GUARANTOR, NON-GUARANTOR -AND
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED APRIL 28, 2002, ApriL 29, 2001
(Im chousands)

NY BINANCIAL INFORMATION

B0 20005 s

(@) (b)
Isle of Capri Wholly- Non-Wholly-  Consolidating
Casinos, Inc. Owned Owned and Isle of Capri
Guarantor Guarantor Non-guarantor Eliminating Casinos, Inc.
(Parent Obligor) Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidated
Balance Sheet As of April 28,2002
Currentassets . .. ..ot $ 7475 $ 113900 $ 14999 $ - $ 136374
Intercompany receivables . ............... 925523 57986 (12,183) (1,0113286) -
Investments in subsidiaries . .............. 190,389 273,342 425 (463,100) 1056
Property and equipment,net............. 2,093 687,252 14,162 - 803,507
Otherassets ........oocoiiin ot 22,630 341,439 35217 - 399,286
Total assets. . ... i $ 1148110 $ 1513919 $ 152,620 $ (1,474426) 5 1340223
Current liabilities. . ..................... $ 3239 $ 98919 $ 27302 $ ) % 158610
Intercompany payables................... 38,791 956,216 16319 {1,011,326) -
Long-term debt, less current maturities. . .. . 912500 8,731 73,892 - 995,123
Deferred income taxes. ................. - - - - -
Other accrued liabilities . .............. .. 5,027 1,000 10,275 - 16,302
Minority interest . .................. - - - 10,990 10,990
Stockholders' equity ... 159,401 449,053 24,832 {474,088) 159,198
Total liabilities and stockholders equity ......... $ 1148110 $ 1513919 $ 152620 $(1474426) % 1340223
Statement of Operations For the fiscal year ended April 28,2002
Revenues:
CasiNO .o $ - $ 946,689 $ 110278 $ - $ 1056967
Room, food, beverage and other....... ... 737 207915 23,026 - 231678
Grossrevenues .. ... 737 1,154,604 133,304 - 288,645
Less promctional allowances . ............ - 180,647 22687 - 203,334
Net revenues . . ..o 737 973957 110617 - 108531 |
Operating expenses:
Casino ..o - 187,513 16,342 - 203,855
Gamingtaxes. . ... o - 205,358 21,709 - 227,067
Rooms, food, beverage and other.......... 16,256 362,180 35944 - 414,380
Accrued litigation settlement.............. - 2,600 - - 2,600
Valuation charge . ... - 61,282 80 - 61,362
Management fee expense (revenue) ....... (36315) 31,556 4,759 - -
Depreciation and amortization. . ..... ... .. 785 66,820 4459 - 72,064
Total operating expenses. . ................... (19,274) 917,309 83293 - 981,328
Operating INcome. ... 20011 56,648 27,324 - 103,983
Dividend income . ...t 26,000 - - (26,000) -
Gain on disposal of assets. ...........ovi.s [25 - - - (25
Interest expense ... ... {81,016) (98,625) (11,157) 101,621 (89,177)
Interestincome .. ... o 98,013 4242 216 (101,621) 850
Minority interest ..o - - - (7,676) (7.676)
Equity in income (loss) of unconsolidated
jointventure. ... (46,376) 16830 (30) 29,538 (38)
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CoONSOLIDATING CONDENSED GUARANTOR, NON=GUARANTOR AND PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED APRIL 28, 2002, APRIL 29, 2001 AND APRIL 30, 2000 (CONT'D.)
e  EOR T APRIL. 26} 2 PRIL. , 305 20

a b
Isle of Capri Wﬁglly- Non-{/\/)holly- Consolidating
Casinos, Inc. Owned Owned and Isle of Capri
Guarantor Guarantor  Non-guarantor Eliminating Casinos, Inc.
(Parent Obligor) Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidated
Income (loss) before income taxes and
extraordinary loss. . ... $ 16757 $ (20905) $ 16353 § (4,138) $ 8047
income tax provision (benefit) ............. ... 18,209 (14,456) - - 3753
Income before extraordinary loss. ............. (1,452) (6,449) 16,353 {4,138) 4,314
Extraordinary loss on extinguishment of debt
{net of income tax benefit). . ........... .. 1,417 {1,908) {6,769) 2911 {4,349)
Net income (1osS) ... $ (35 % (8357) $ 9584 % (1.227) $ (35)
Statement of Cash Flows For the fiscal year ended April 28, 2002
Net cash provided by operating activities .......... $ 2,450 $ 110392 $ 32083 % 8,690 $ 153615
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities. . 38,360 (108,299) (27,154 (3,385) (100478)
Net cash used in financing activities . ............. (38,279) (2,764) (7075) (5,081) (53,199
Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents. . ................. ... .. 2,531 (671 (2,146) 224 (62)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year. .. 159 59,005 13,170 4,325 76,659
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year . ... $ 2690 $ 58334 $ 1104 % 4549 $ 76597
Balance Sheet As of April 29,2001
Currentassets. . ... $ 14606 $ 92445 $ 14407 $ - $ 121,458
Intercompany receivables ... ... 858,629 130,130 3 (988,763) (1
Investments in subsidiaries . .............. 256,457 256877 - (513,335) 39
~ Property and equipment, net............. 1714 766,777 103,677 - 872,168
Otherassets. ... 33,350 352,746 3,147 - 389243
Total assets. ... oot $ 1,16479 $ 1598975 $ 121234 $ (1,502098) $ 1,382,507
Current liabilities. ...................... $ 36682 $ 110457 $ 12406 % ! $ 159546
Intercompany payables . ................. 23,884 962,691 2,188 (988,763) -
Long-term debt, less current maturities. . . . . 926,750 15279 76,156 - 1,018,185
Deferred income taxes.................. [1,434 4,129 - - 15563
Other accrued liabilities ................. - 9,670 - - 9.670
Minority interest. . ... oo - - - 13902 13902
Stockholders' equity .................... 166,046 496,749 30,484 (527,238 166,041
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity. .. .. ..... $ 1164796 $ 1,598,975 $ 121234 % (1,502,098) $ 1382907
Statement of Operations For the fiscal year ended April 29, 2001
Revenues:
Casino ..o $ - $ 855150 $ 101997 % - $ 957147
Room, food, beverage and other . ... ... ... 528 202,883 17,790 - 221,201
Gross revenues . .. ...oou it 528 1,058,033 119,787 - 1,178,348
Less promotional allowances ............. - 175879 19,668 - 195,547

Net revenues. ... ..o 528 882,154 100,119 - 982,801
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(@) (b)
Isle of Capri Wholly- Non-Wholly-  Consolidating
Casinos, Inc. Owned Owned and Isle of Capri
Guarantor Guarantor Non-guarantor Eliminating Casinos, Inc.
(Parent Obligor) Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidated
Operating expenses:
Casino. oo - 177392 14,817 - 192,209
Gamingtaxes. ... - 172,489 20,082 - 192571
Room, food, beverage and other........... (1,409) 348,990 35596 - 383,177
Depreciation and amortization. ........... 1179 64597 3,336 - 69,112
Total operating expenses. .. ......ooviii... (230) 763468 73,831 - 837,069
Operating income .. ... 758 118,686 26,288 - 145732
Gain on disposal of assets. .......... .ol - 271 - - 271
Interest expense,net. ..., (92,128) (96,415) (11,688) 101289 (98942)
Interest income ... ... 100,687 5,524 184 (101,289 5,106
Minority interest .. ... oo - - - (6,357) (6,357)
Dividendincome. . ..............ooo i, - 14819 - (14819 -
Equity in income (loss) of
unconsolidated joint venture. ..., ... .. 31,236 29,046 - (60444) (162)
Income (loss) before income taxes............. 40,553 71,931 14784 (81,620 45,648
[ncome tax provision. . ... s 15418 5,086 - - 20504
Net income (loss) . ...t $ 25135 $ 66,845 $ 14784 $ (81.620) $ 25144
Statement of Cash Flows
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities. . .......... . $(183,107) $ 439057 $ 14802 $ (196,602) $ 74150
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities. . 41,265 (453,984) (8,570 195911 (225,378)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities. . 63,056 (4,129) 297 691 59915
Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents. . .................. L. (78786) (19056) 6,529 - (91313)
Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year.................... 78,945 82514 6,513 - 167972
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year . ... $ 159 $ 63458 $ 13042 $ - $ 76659
Statement of Operations For the year ended April 30,2000
Revenues:
Casine ... $ - $ 530803 $ 88548 $ -~ $ 619351
Room, food, beverage and other........ .. 1353 127318 [ 1774 ~ 140,445
Gross revenues .. ......ovueei ol 1353 658,121 100,322 ~ 759796
Less promotional allowances ............. - 97,957 15,135 - 113,092
Netrevenues. ... ..., 1353 560,164 85,187 -~ 646,704
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a b
Isle of Capri W(ht)ally Non-(\/\)/holly Consolidating
Casinos, Inc. Owned Owned and Isle of Capri
Guarantor Guarantor ~ Non-guarantor Eliminating Casinos, Inc.
(Parent Obligor) Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidated
Operating expenses:
Casino oo - 103,509 12,596 - 116,105
Gaming taxes. . .. .....oov - 105,232 17,340 - 122,572
Room, food, beverage and other........ ... (4997) 223,404 33,778 - 252,185
Depreciation and amortization. . .......... 1,030 39,202 2,114 - 42,346
Total operating expenses. . ................... (3.967) 471,347 653828 - 533,208
Operating income ... 5,320 88,817 19,359 - 113,496
Gain on disposal of assets. ................... 3092 14 - - 3,106
Interest expense, net. ... 2,804 (47,683) (10,754) - (55,633)
Minority interest ... - - - (3,700) (3,700)
Equity in income (loss) of
unconsolidated joint venture .. ..., ..., 44,686 - - (44,427) 259
Income (lass) before income taxes
and extraordinary loss .. .............. .. 55,902 41,148 8,605 (48,127) 57528
Income tax provision. .. ... 10977 14,496 — - 25473
Income (loss) before extraordinary loss. .. ... ... 44925 26,652 8,605 (48,127) 32,055
Extraordinary loss on extinguishment of
debt (net of applicable income tax benefit). . - (984) - - (984)
Net income (10ss) ..o $ 44925 $ 25668 $ 8605 $ (48127) $ 31,071
Statement of Cash Flows
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities. . $ (307,048) $ 267508 $ 13,825 $ 155798 $ 130483
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities . . (63,577) {21,108) (17,475) (155,798) (257,958)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities . . 407411 (196,327) (754) — 210,330
Net increase {decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents. .. ... 36,786 50,473 (4,404 - 82,855
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year. . 35826 38,374 10917 — 85,117
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year .. .. $ 72612 $ 88847 $ 6513 3 - $ 167972

(a) Certain of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries were guarantors on the 8.75% Senior Subordinated Notes, the 9% Sentor Subordinated Notes and the Senior Secured
Credir Facility including the following;: the Isle-Biloxi, the Isle-Vicksburg, the Isle-Tunica, the Isle-Bossier City, the Isle-Lake Charles and PPI, Inc., IOC Holdings, LL.C.
and Riverboat Services, Inc. The Isle-Natchez, the Isle-Lula, the Isle-Bettendorf, and the Isle-Marquette became guarantors as of March 2, 2000, the date of the acquisition.
The Isle-Boonville, the Isle-Kansas City, the Lady Luck-Las Vegas and the Isle-Davenport became guarantors as of their respective dates of acquisition.

(b) The following non-wholly-owned subsidiaries were not guarantors on the 8.75% Senior Subordinated Notes nor the 9% Senior Subordinated Notes: Isle of Capri Black
Hawk L.L.C,, Isle of Capri Black Hawk Capital Corp., Capri Air, Inc,, Lady Luck Gaming Corp., Lady Luck Gulfport, Inc., Lady Luck Vicksburg, Inc., Lady Luck Biloxi,
Inc., Lady Luck Central City, Inc.,, I0C-Coahoma, Inc., Pompano Park Holdings, L.L.C., Casino America of Colorado, Inc., ASMI Management, Inc. and 10C
-Development, LLC., Casino America, Inc., ICC Corp., International Marco Polo Services, Inc., IOC-St. Louis County, Inc., IOC, L.L.C,, Isle of Capri Casino Colorado,
Inc,, Isle of Capri of Michigan LLC, Lady Luck Bettendorf Marina Corp., Water Street Redevelopment Corporation, Casino Parking, Inc., IOC-Black Hawk Distribution
Company, LLC, Isle of Capri of Jefferson County, Inc., Lady Luck Scott City, Inc. and Louisiana Horizons, LL.C.
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23. Selected Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

Fiscal Quarters Ended
(In thousands, except per share data) July 29,2001 October 26,2001 January 27,2002 April 28,2002
Net PeVENUES ... $ 257588 $ 260,506 $262,135 $ 305082
Operating income (I085). .. ..o 34367 40,580 35906 (6,870)
Income (loss) before extraordinary loss ... 5,854 10435 8,082 (20057
Extraordinary loss, net of income tax benefit .................. - - (2438) (1511
Net income (I0S5). .o vvvee e 5854 10,435 5644 (21,968)
Net income (loss) per common share before extracrdinary loss:
BASIC. v 02l 037 029 07N
Diuted. ..o 020 035 027 071
Net income (loss) per common share:
BasiC. 02! 037 020 (0.78)
Diluted. ..o 020 035 0.19 (0.78)
Fiscal Quarters Ended
(In thousands, except per share data) July 30,2000 October 29,2000 January 28,2001 April 29,2001
NEE PEVENUES vt $ 235667 $233794 $ 237,508 $ 275831
Operating iNCoMe ... v 42423 41,736 20752 40,820
Net income {10S8) ..o 10,569 9636 (2958) 7897
Net income (loss) per common share:
BaSIC .. 035 0.32 (0.10) 027
Dluted .o 033 0.30 (0.10) 026

Quarterly data may not necessarily sum to the full year daa reported in
the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

The third quarter of fiscal 2001 includes other charges of $4.3 million
related to $2.9 million loss on investment in joine venture and $1.4 million
write-off of Crowne Plaza license at the Isle-Biloxi.

The fourth quarter of fiscal 2001 includes other charges of $4.9 million
related to $3.0 million write-off of abandoned expansion project assets at the
Isle-Biloxi, $0.9 million relating to the write-off of the theater production
contracts at the Isle-Tunica and $1.0 write-down of marine assets.

The first quarter of fiscal 2002 includes $0.25 million related to business
interruption proceeds at the Isle-Marquette and $0.4 million related to
preopening expenses incurred in preparation for the opening of the sle-
Boonville on December 6, 2001.

The second quarter of fiscal 2002 includes $1.25 million and
$0.25 million related to business interruption proceeds at the Rhythm City-
Davenport and the Isle-Marquette, respectively. The second quarter of fiscal
2002 also includes $1.1 million related to preopening expenses incurred in
preparation for the opening of the Isle-Boonville on December 6, 2001.

The third quarter of fiscal 2002 includes $2.15 million and $0.25 million
related to business interruption proceeds at the Rhythm City-Davenport and
the Isle-Marquette, respectively. The third quarter of fiscal 2002 also includes

$2.3 million refated to preopening expenses incurred in preparation for the

opening of the Isle-Boonville on December 6, 2001.

The fourth quarter of fiscal 2002 includes $59.2 million related w0 a
valuation charge for the difference between net book value and estimated fair
value less estimated costs to sell at the Isle-Tunica and the Lady Luck-Las
Vegas. Also included in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002 s a valuation charge
of $2.2 million for a barge and hulls thac have been in storage for future
development and will be offered for sale in fiscal 2003 and $2.6 million related
to an accrued litigation setdlement at the Isle-Lake Charles.

24, Subsequent Event
Proposed Stock Offering
On May 24, 2002, the Company filed a registration statement with the

SEC for a proposed offering of up 10 6,152,500 shares of our common stock
(which includes 802,500 shares to cover over-allotments). The Isle of Capri
would sell up to 4,802,500 of such shares and certain stockholders, consisting
of Bernard Goldstein, the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,
and certain members of Mr. Goldstein's family and affiliated entities would sell
up to the remaining 1,350,000 shares. The registration statement relating to
these shares has not become effective, and the Company can give no assurances
that it will become effective. In addition, the Company can provide no
assurances as to whether any such offering will ultimately occur, the tming of
any such offering or the price at which any shares may be sold, and therefore,
the amount of proceeds the Company might raise.
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Report of Independent Auditors
The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Iste of Capri Casinos, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. as of April 28, 2002
and April 29, 2001 and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the
years ended April 28, 2002, April 29, 2001 and April 30, 2000. These financial statements are the responsibility of the

Company’s management. Our responsibility s to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe

that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements refetred to above present faitly, in all marerial respects, the consolidated
financial position of Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. at April 28, 2002 and April 29, 2001, and the consolidated results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years ended April 28, 2002, April 29, 2001 and April 30, 2000, in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. adopted Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 in the year ended April 28, 2002.

ERNST & YOUNG LLP

New Orleans, Louisiana
June 7, 2002
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Market For Registrant’s Commeon Equity And Related
Stockholders’ Matters

(a} Matket Information. Qur common stock is traded on the Nasdaq
National Market under the symbol “ISLE”. The following table presents
the high and low closing sales prices for our common stock as reporred

by the Nasdaq National Market for the fiscal periods indicated.

High Low

Fiscal Year Ending April 27, 2003

First Quarter (through

Jure 14,2002) .o $22.89 $ 1650

Fiscal Year Ended April 28, 2002
First Quarter. ...................... $1025 $7.75
Second Quarter.................... 924 649
Third Quarter. ...l 16.17 882
Fourth Quarter..................... 2150 1442

Fiscal Year Ended April 29, 200
First Quarter. . ..o $17.25 $ 1263
Second Quarter .................... 16,63 [0.13
Third Quarter. ................. ... 11,75 744
Fourth Quarter..................... 10,69 800

{b) Holders of Common Stock. As of June 14, 2002, there were 1,320

holders of record of our common stock.

(c) Dividends. We have never declared or paid any dividends with
respect to our common stock and the current policy of our Board of
Directors is to retain earnings to provide for the growth of the
company. In addition, our Senior Secured Credic Facility and the
indentures governing our 8.75% Senior Subordinated Notes and our
9.00% Senior Subordinated Notes limit our ability to pay dividends.
See “Irem 8— Index to Consolidated Financial Statements— Isle of
Capri Casinos, Inc.— Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—
Note 8.” Consequently, no cash dividends are expected to be paid on
our common stock in the foreseeable future. Further, there can be no
assurance that our current and proposed operations will generate the
funds needed ro declare a cash dividend or that we will have legally
available funds to pay dividends. In addition, we may fund part of
our operations in the future from indebtedness, the terms of which
may prohibit or restrict the payment of cash dividends. If a holder of
common stock is disqualified by the regulatory authorities from
owning such shares, such holder will not be permitted to receive any
dividends with respect to such stock. See “Item 1— Business—

Regulatory Matters.”
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A copy of the Company’s annual report on form 10-K for Fiscal 2002, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, is available without charge by written request to Mr. Rexford A. Yeisley at the corporate headquarters.
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